THE SECOND SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT TO NORTH HOLDINGS 3 OY'S TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT DATED NOVEMBER 24, 2022, RELATING TO THE VOLUNTARY PUBLIC TENDER OFFER FOR ALL ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING SHARES IN CAVERION CORPORATION

February 10, 2023

THE TENDER OFFER IS NOT BEING MADE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW AND THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT, RELATED ACCEPTANCE FORMS AND SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENTS ARE NOT AND MAY NOT BE DISTRIBUTED, FORWARDED OR TRANSMITTED INTO OR FROM ANY JURISDICTION WHERE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MAIL, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION, E-MAIL OR TELEPHONE. IN PARTICULAR, THE TENDER OFFER IS NOT MADE IN AND THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT AND THIS SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT MUST UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES BE DISTRIBUTED INTO AUSTRALIA, CANADA, THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION OF THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA ("HONG KONG"), JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION WHERE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW. SHAREHOLDERS IN THE UNITED STATES SHOULD ALSO REFER TO THE SECTION TITLED "INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS IN THE UNITED STATES" BELOW.

North Holdings 3 Oy (the "Offeror") and Caverion Corporation (the "Company" or "Caverion") have on November 3, 2022 entered into a combination agreement, which was amended on January 24, 2023 (as amended, the "Combination Agreement"), pursuant to which the Offeror has made a recommended voluntary public tender offer to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion that are not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries (the "Shares" or, individually, a "Share") (the "Tender Offer"). The Offeror has on November 24, 2022 published a tender offer document, dated November 24, 2022, and on January 13, 2023 published the first supplement document to the tender offer document, concerning the Tender Offer (the tender offer document, as supplemented from time to time, the "Tender Offer Offer Document"). The offer period for the Tender Offer commenced on November 24, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. (Finnish time).

The Offeror and Caverion have on January 24, 2023 entered into an amendment to the Combination Agreement between them, according to which the Offeror has, among other things, agreed to improve the consideration offered for each Share in the Tender Offer so that the shareholders of Caverion are given the possibility to choose either: (i) a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per Share payable in nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer implemented through the issuance of a debt instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer, or (ii) an immediate cash consideration of EUR 8.00 upon completion of the Tender Offer for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer. The Offeror has also agreed to lower the minimum acceptance threshold of the Tender Offer from more than 90 percent to more than 66 2/3 percent of all Shares.

The Offeror supplements the Tender Offer Document in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 11, Subsection 4 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act (746/2012, as amended) with the information included in this document (the "Supplement Document").

The Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority (the "FIN-FSA") has approved the Finnish language version of this Supplement Document but the FIN-FSA assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the information presented therein. The decision number of the approval of the FIN-FSA is FIVA/2023/232. This Supplement Document has been translated into the English language. In the event of any discrepancy between the two language versions of the Supplement Document, the Finnish language version shall prevail.

COVER PAGE

The third paragraph of the cover page shall be amended by adding the following passages that are underlined and set in bold, and deleting the words marked with strikethrough:

"In addition, (i) certain funds managed by affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) certain affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("Goldman Sachs Asset Management") are providing <u>structurally</u> subordinated debt financing to the PIK Borrower (as defined below) in connection with the Tender Offer. In connection with the subordinated debt financing arrangement, it has been agreed that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will also make an equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in North Luxco subject to certain conditions. If the equity co-investment is made by Goldman Sachs Asset Management, and assuming that the Offeror obtains more than <u>ninety (90) percent sixty-six and two thirds (66 2/3) percent</u> of the Shares and voting rights carried by the Shares, it is expected that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will own approximately 6–7 6.3–9.99 percent of the common shares in North Luxco <u>depending on, inter alia, the acceptance level of the Tender Offer and the total offer consideration payable by the Offeror. Such co-investment will dilute the Consortium members' ownership in North Luxco in equal proportion. See "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer"."</u>

The fifth and sixth paragraphs of the cover page shall be amended by adding the following passage that is underlined and set in bold, and deleting the words marked with strikethrough:

"The Tender Offer was announced by the Offeror on November 3, 2022 (the "Announcement") and amendments to its terms and conditions were announced on January 24, 2023 with an offer price of EUR 7.00 in cash for each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer (the "Offer Price"). The shareholders of Caverion are in the Tender Offer given the possibility to choose either: (i) a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per Share payable in nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer implemented through the issuance of a debt instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 (the "Alternative Consideration Instrument") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer, or (ii) an immediate cash consideration of EUR 8.00 upon completion of the Tender Offer (the "Cash Offer Price") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer. The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued by the Offeror on the date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 and will be redeemed at their full nominal amount upon their maturity on the date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. Shareholders choosing the Alternative Consideration will be issued one (1) Alternative Consideration Instrument for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer in connection with the completion trades of the Tender Offer. Shareholders holding Shares on Finnish equity savings accounts are not eligible to elect the Alternative Consideration Instrument in respect of such Shares for regulatory reasons. Instead of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, the shareholders holding Shares on the Finnish equity savings accounts have the possibility to elect a non-transferable deferred payment right of EUR 8.50 per Share to be paid in cash nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer (the "Deferred Payment Right", and together with the Alternative Consideration Instruments the "Alternative Consideration"). The Alternative Consideration and the Cash Offer Price are jointly referred to as the "Offer Price".

The offer period for the Tender Offer will commence has commenced on November 24, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. (Finnish time) and expire will expire on January 31February 28, 2023 at 4:00 p.m. (Finnish time), unless the offer period is extended or any extended offer period is discontinued (the "Offer Period"). For details, please see "*Terms and Conditions of the Tender Offer*"."

The eighth and ninth paragraphs of the cover page shall be amended by adding the following passage that is underlined and set in bold, and deleting the words marked with strikethrough:

"Certain shareholders of Caverion, together representing approximately 15.84-16.39 percent of all the Shares and votes in Caverion, have irrevocably undertaken, or renewed their irrevocable undertakings, to accept the Tender Offer subject to certain customary conditions. See "*Background and Objectives – Undertakings by Shareholders*". Together with the Shares held by the Consortium, the irrevocable undertakings represent approximately 42.50 43.05 percent of all the Shares and votes in Caverion.

The Offeror and Caverion have on November 3, 2022 entered into a combination agreement, which was amended on January 24, 2023 (as amended, (the "Combination Agreement"). The Board of Directors of Caverion,

represented by a quorum comprising the non-conflicted members of the Board of Directors, has unanimously decided to recommend in its statement issued pursuant to the Finnish Securities Markets Act and the Helsinki Takeover Code (as defined below) that the shareholders of Caverion accept the Tender Offer (the "Recommendation"). Based on the amendments to the Combination Agreement made on January 24, 2023, the Board of Directors of Caverion has on February 9, 2023 supplemented its statement and renewed its recommendation regarding the Tender Offer that was issued and announced on November 18, 2022."

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COVER PAGE	2
SUMMARY RELATING TO THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION	6
INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS	6
KEY INFORMATION ON THE OFFEROR	7
KEY INFORMATION ON THE SECURITIES AND THE DEFERRED PAYMENT RIGHTS	8
KEY INFORMATION ON THE OFFER OF ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION TO THE PUBLIC	10
RESTRICTIONS AND IMPORTANT INFORMATION	11
INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS IN THE UNITED STATES	11
AVAILABILITY OF DOCUMENTS	12
CERTAIN KEY DATES	12
PARTIES RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT	13
STATEMENT REGARDING THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT	13
NO INCORPORATION OF WEBSITE INFORMATION	13
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATED INFORMATION	14
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	14
AUDITORS	14
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION	15
A. RISKS RELATED TO THE OFFEROR	15
B. RISKS RELATED TO THE OFFEROR'S INDEBTEDNESS	16
C. RISKS RELATED TO THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION	16
D. RISKS SPECIFIC TO U.S. SHAREHOLDERS	20
OVERVIEW OF THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION OFFERING AND THE ALTERNATION INSTRUMENTS	
BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES	25
BACKGROUND TO THE TENDER OFFER AND OFFEROR'S STRATEGIC PLANS	25
SHARE-BASED LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS OF CAVERION	26
FINANCING OF THE TENDER OFFER	26
OFFEROR'S FUTURE PLANS IN RESPECT OF THE SHARES	29
STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CAVERION	29
UNDERTAKINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS	30
REGULATORY APPROVALS	31
INFORMATION ON THE PRICING OF THE TENDER OFFER	32
GROUNDS FOR DETERMINING THE OFFER PRICE	32
OFFER PRICE	32
OTHER PUBLIC TENDER OFFERS REGARDING THE SHARES	33
SUMMARY OF THE COMBINATION AGREEMENT	34
BACKGROUND TO THE COMBINATION AGREEMENT	34
OFFER PERIOD AND OFFER PRICE	34
RECOMMENDATION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CAVERION	34

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS AND UNDERTAKINGS	34
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE TENDER OFFER	36
OBJECT OF THE TENDER OFFER	
OFFER PRICE	
OFFER PERIOD	
CONDITIONS TO COMPLETION OF THE TENDER OFFER	
OBLIGATION TO INCREASE THE OFFER PRICE AND TO PAY COMPENSATION	40
ACCEPTANCE PROCEDURE OF THE TENDER OFFER	41
RIGHT OF WITHDRAWAL OF ACCEPTANCE	42
TECHNICAL COMPLETION OF THE TENDER OFFER	43
ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE RESULT OF THE TENDER OFFER	44
COMPLETION OF THE TENDER OFFER	44
TERMS OF PAYMENT AND SETTLEMENT	44
TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP	45
TRANSFER TAX AND OTHER PAYMENTS	45
OTHER MATTERS	45
OTHER INFORMATION	46
IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING NID AND LEI	46
INFORMATION ABOUT PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA	46
PRESENTATION OF THE OFFEROR	47
HISTORY	47
OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE	47
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	47
MATERIAL CONTRACTS	47
FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION	48
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS	48
SHARE CAPITAL	49
BOARD OF DIRECTORS	49
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	50
TAXATION	51
SALE OF SHARES AGAINST THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION	51

ANNEXES

Annex	Page
Terms and conditions of the alternative consideration instruments	F-1
Updated statement by the Board of Directions of Caverion	G-1
Financial statements of North Holdings 3 Oy (unaudited)	H-1

SUMMARY RELATING TO THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION

This section "Summary Relating to the Alternative Consideration" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

Introduction and Warnings

This summary should be read as an introduction to this Supplement Document. Any decision to invest in the Alternative Consideration Instruments should be based on consideration of the Supplement Document and the Tender Offer Document (as defined below) as a whole by the investor. An investor investing in the Alternative Consideration Instruments could lose all or part of the invested capital. Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Supplement Document is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under applicable law, have to bear the costs of translating the Supplement Document before legal proceedings are initiated. The Offeror assumes civil liability in respect of this summary including any translation thereof as it relates to the Alternative Consideration Instruments only if it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Supplement Document, or if it does not provide, when read together with the other parts of the Supplement Document, in order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

The identity and contact details of the issuer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are as follows:

Name of the issuer:	North Holdings 3 Oy
Address:	c/o Roschier, Attorneys Ltd., Kasarmikatu 21 A, FI- 00130 Helsinki, Finland
Business identity code:	3313575-3
Legal entity identifier (LEI):	7437009B9MUZV15RTK32

North Holdings 3 Oy (the "**Offeror**") and Caverion Corporation (the "**Company**" or "**Caverion**") have on November 3, 2022 entered into a combination agreement, which was amended on January 24, 2023 (as amended, the "**Combination Agreement**"), pursuant to which the Offeror has made a recommended voluntary public tender offer to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion that are not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries (the "**Shares**" or, individually, a "**Share**") (the "**Tender Offer**"). The Offeror has on November 24, 2022 published a tender offer document, dated November 24, 2022, and on January 13, 2023 published the first supplement document to the tender offer document, concerning the Tender Offer (the tender offer document, as supplemented from time to time, the "**Tender Offer Document**"). The Offeror supplements the Tender Offer Document in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 11, Subsection 4 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act (746/2012, as amended, the "**Finnish Securities Markets Act**") with the information included in this supplement document (the "**Supplement Document**"). The Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document have been prepared by the Offeror pursuant to Chapter 11, Section 11 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act.

The Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority (the "**FIN-FSA**") has approved the Finnish language version of this Supplement Document on February 10, 2023 but the FIN-FSA assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the information presented therein. The decision number of the approval of the FIN-FSA is FIVA/2023/232. This Supplement Document has been translated into the English language. In the event of any discrepancy between the two language versions of the Supplement Document, the Finnish language version shall prevail.

The identity and contact details of the competent authority, the FIN-FSA, approving the Finnish language version of this Supplement Document are as follows:

Financial Supervisory Authority P.O. Box 103 FI-00101 Helsinki, Finland Tel.: +358 9 183 51 Email: registry@fiva.fi.

Key Information on the Offeror

Who Is the Issuer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments?

The issuer's legal and commercial name is North Holdings 3 Oy and it is domiciled in Helsinki, Finland. The Offeror is registered in the Finnish Trade Register of the Finnish Patent and Registration Office under business identity code 3313575-3 and legal entity identifier (LEI) 7437009B9MUZV15RTK32. The Offeror is a private limited liability company incorporated in Finland and operating under Finnish law.

General

As at the date of this Supplement Document, the Offeror is indirectly wholly-owned by North Lux Topco SARL ("North Luxco"), which is a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. North Luxco was incorporated to be the holding company in the acquisition structure and is currently wholly-owned by North (BC) Lux Holdco SARL ("Bain Luxco") (a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP, and/or its affiliates (together "Bain Capital", and such funds being the "Bain Capital Funds")). Bain Luxco, Security Trading Oy ("Security Trading"), Fennogens Investments S.A. ("Fennogens") and Corbis S.A. ("Corbis") form a consortium (the "Consortium") for the purposes of the Tender Offer.

In addition, (i) certain funds managed by affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) certain affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("Goldman Sachs Asset Management") are providing structurally subordinated debt financing to the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy in connection with the Tender Offer. In connection with the structurally subordinated debt financing arrangement, it has been agreed that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will also make an equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in North Luxco subject to certain conditions.

It is expected that immediately after the completion of the Tender Offer and the cash investments to be made by the Consortium members in North Luxco, Bain Luxco will own approximately 72.92 percent, Security Trading approximately 15.43 percent, Fennogens approximately 10.38 percent and Corbis approximately 1.27 percent of the common shares in North Luxco, subject to adjustment on the basis of pre-agreed maximum investment amounts of Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis and the possible co-investment by Goldman Sachs Asset Management described above.

Key Managing Directors and Statutory Auditor

The members of the Board of Directors of the Offeror are Ivano Sessa (the Chairman), Nicholas Bendt, Klaus Cawén, Halvor Meyer Horten and Alexandre Labignette.

The Offeror's statutory auditor is Ernst & Young Oy, Authorized Public Accountants, with Antti Suominen, Authorized Public Accountant as the auditor with principal responsibility.

What Is the Key Financial Information Regarding the Offeror?

The selected historical key financial information presented below has been derived from the Offeror's unaudited consolidated financial statements as at and for the financial year September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022, prepared in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Standards ("FAS"). The Offeror was incorporated on September 20, 2022 for the purposes of the Tender Offer, and it has never conducted and does not currently conduct any other business activities. The financing commitments addressed to the Offeror for the purposes of funding the Tender Offer have been described under section "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*".

The following table sets forth the key figures of the Offeror as at December 31, 2022 and September 20, 2022 - December 31, 2022:

	As at December 31, 2022 and September 20, 2022 –
	December 31, 2022
(EUR thousand)	(unaudited)
Operating profit/loss	-17.5
Assets total	20.0

What Are the Key Risks That Are Specific to the Offeror?

• The Offeror is a holding company that has no revenue generating operations of its own and will depend on the financing provided by its direct and indirect parent companies and other parties, including the equity commitment letters provided by the Consortium Investors (as defined below), to be able to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration.

Key Information on the Securities and the Deferred Payment Rights

What Are the Main Features of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights?

The shareholders of Caverion are given the possibility to choose either: (i) a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per Share payable in nine months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer implemented through the issuance of a debt instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 (the "Alternative Consideration Instrument") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer, or (ii) an immediate cash consideration of EUR 8.00 upon completion of the Tender Offer (the "Cash Offer Price") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued by the Offeror on the date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 and will be redeemed at their full nominal amount upon their maturity on the date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (the "**Redemption Date**"). One validly tendered Share entitles its holder to one Alternative Consideration Instrument issued by the Offeror. The nominal principal amount and book-entry unit of each of the Alternative Consideration Instrument is EUR 8.50. The Alternative Consideration Instrument shall not accrue any interest.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be redeemed at their full nominal amount of EUR 8.50 on the Redemption Date. If the Redemption Date falls on a date which is not a Business Day, the Redemption Date will be postponed to the next following Business Day. "Business Day" shall mean a day on which the European TARGET2 System is open for the settlement of payment orders.

Shareholders holding Shares on Finnish equity savings accounts are not eligible to elect the Alternative Consideration Instrument in respect of such Shares for regulatory reasons. Instead of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, the shareholders holding Shares on the Finnish equity savings accounts have the possibility to elect a non-transferable deferred payment right of EUR 8.50 per Share to be paid in cash nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer (the "Deferred Payment Right", and together with the Alternative Consideration Instruments the "Alternative Consideration"). The Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable rights to payment from the Offeror, and to demonstrate these in the book-entry system, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded to a shareholder's equity savings account.

The Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration have been determined based on 136,472,645 issued and outstanding Shares. Should the Company increase the number of Shares that are issued and outstanding on the date hereof as a result of a new share issue, reclassification, stock split (including a reverse split) or any other similar transaction with dilutive effect, or should the Company distribute a dividend or otherwise distribute funds or any other assets to its shareholders, or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to any of the settlements of the completion trades of the Tender Offer (whether after the expiry of the Offer Period or any Subsequent Offer Period (as defined below)), resulting in the distribution of funds not being payable to the Offeror, the Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration payable by the Offeror shall be reduced accordingly on a euro-for-euro basis. However, each of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights are not subject to any adjustments after such an Alternative Consideration Instrument has been delivered or a Deferred Payment Right has been recorded to the shareholder but, instead, the adjustments will occur only if the distribution of funds or other corporate event entitling to the adjustment or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to the settlement of relevant completion trades of the Tender Offer.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights are direct, unsubordinated, unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Offeror ranking *pari passu* and without any preference among them.

Bain Capital Europe Fund VI, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis (the "**Consortium Investors**") have given equity commitments (the "**Equity Commitment Letters**") to the Offeror to fund the Offeror for the purposes of the Tender Offer and the designated purpose of such equity commitments is to enable payment of the aggregate Cash Offer Price and redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment to holders of equity savings accounts by the Offeror. Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters, the Offeror has undertaken not to apply the funding drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters for other purposes, such as the repayment of the Offeror's other financial indebtedness, and any bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror does not affect the Offeror's ability to draw down such commitments under the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters.

The Consortium Investors have irrevocably confirmed and undertaken under the Equity Commitment Letters to provide funding for the Offeror to redeem the Alternative Consideration Instruments and pay the Deferred Payment Rights in connection with the Tender Offer (such funding being the "Alternative Consideration Funding") on or prior to the date on which any amounts outstanding under the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights will become due and payable pursuant to the terms thereof. Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters, any Alternative Consideration Funding drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters by the Offeror will be deposited into a segregated bank account of the Offeror located in England & Wales, which is subject to laws of England (the "Trust Account"). As set out in the Equity Commitment Letters, the Alternative Consideration Funding will be held in the Trust Account by the Offeror on trust for the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights and solely for the purpose of redeeming the Alternative Consideration Instruments and paying the Deferred Payment Rights.

Holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are not entitled to demand prepayment or repayment of their Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the Redemption Date. Neither the holders of the Deferred Payment Rights are entitled to demand prepayment.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued as book-entry form debt securities in Euroclear Finland's Infinity system and no physical certificates will be issued. The Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and Clearing Operations, Act on Book-Entry Accounts as well as the rules and CEO's decisions of Euroclear Finland will be applied to the handling of the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are transferable after they have been registered into the respective book-entry account of the relevant holder of such Alternative Consideration Instruments. No application has been or will be made by the Offeror to have the Alternative Consideration Instruments admitted to trading on any trading venue. The Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable.

Where Will the Alternative Consideration Instruments Be Traded?

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are not subject to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility, and the Offeror does not intend to make a request for admission of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility or any other trading venue.

What Are the Key Risks That Are Specific to the Alternative Consideration?

- Secured creditors will have prior claim to the Offeror's assets that constitute their collateral as compared to holders of the Alternative Consideration.
- Investors are exposed to credit risk in respect of the Offeror and may lose their investment in the Alternative Consideration Instruments or value of the Deferred Payment Right.
- Holders of the Alternative Consideration are indirectly exposed to credit and counterparty risk in respect of the Consortium Investors.
- The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights constitute unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Offeror.

• No direct recourse to payments under the Equity Commitment Letters provided by the Consortium Investors.

Key Information on the Offer of Alternative Consideration to the Public

Under Which Conditions and Timetable Can I Invest in the Alternative Consideration?

The offer period for the Tender Offer commenced on November 24, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. (Finnish time) and expires on February 28, 2023 at 4:00 p.m. (Finnish time), unless the offer period is extended or any extended offer period is discontinued (the "**Offer Period**"). Acceptance of the Tender Offer with Alternative Consideration may only be submitted on the business day following the publication of the Supplement Document, *i.e.* from February 13, 2023.

Before February 13, 2023, acceptance of the Tender Offer can only be made with the Cash Offer Price. Each shareholder of Caverion whose acceptance of the Tender Offer has been submitted before February 13, 2023, shall be deemed to have accepted the Tender Offer with the Cash Offer Price. If a shareholder of Caverion has submitted the acceptance of the Tender Offer before February 13, 2023 in respect of the Shares held by him/her and wishes to elect the Alternative Consideration instead of the Cash Offer Price, such shareholder must submit a valid withdrawal of his/her earlier acceptance of the Tender Offer in accordance with instructions from the account operator and submit a duly executed acceptance form for the Alternative Consideration.

Why Is This Supplement Document Being Produced?

This Supplement Document have been prepared by the Offeror pursuant to Chapter 11, Section 11 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act as a supplement to the Tender Offer Document in connection with, among other things, the offering of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. Neither the Tender Offer Document nor this Supplement Document constitute a prospectus in accordance with Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the "**Prospectus Regulation**").

Reasons for the Offering

The Offeror's reason for the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the offering of the Deferred Payment Rights (the "Alternative Consideration Offering") is the offering of an alternative consideration as an alternative to the cash consideration in connection with the Tender Offer.

Use and Estimated Amount of Proceeds

There will be no monetary proceeds accruing to the Offeror from the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. The Alternative Consideration Instruments are being issued as consideration for the acquisition of Shares in the Tender Offer.

Interests Related to the Offering

Bain Luxco, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis have formed the Consortium for the purposes of the Tender Offer by the Offeror. The Alternative Consideration Offering forms part of the Tender Offer.

In addition, the Consortium Investors have given the equity commitments to the Offeror to fund the Offeror for the purposes of the Tender Offer, including also funding for the purposes of redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights as set out above.

RESTRICTIONS AND IMPORTANT INFORMATION

The section "*Restrictions and Important Information*" shall be amended by adding the following paragraph as the sixth paragraph under the section:

In a number of countries, in particular in Australia, Canada, Hong Kong, Japan, New Zealand and South Africa, the distribution of the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document and the offer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are subject to restrictions imposed by law (such as registration, admission, qualification and other regulations). The offer to subscribe for the Alternative Consideration Instruments does not include persons in any jurisdiction where such an offer would be illegal.

The section "*Restrictions and Important Information – Information for Shareholders in the United States*" shall be amended by replacing the section with the following paragraphs:

Information for Shareholders in the United States

Shareholders of Caverion in the United States are advised that the shares in Caverion are not listed on a U.S. securities exchange and that Caverion is not subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "**Exchange Act**"), and is not required to, and does not, file any reports with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "**SEC**") thereunder.

The Tender Offer is made for the issued and outstanding shares of Caverion, which is domiciled in Finland, and is subject to Finnish disclosure and procedural requirements. The Tender Offer is made in the United States pursuant to Section 14(e) and Regulation 14E under the Exchange Act, subject to the exemption provided under Rule 14d-1(c) under the Exchange Act for a Tier I tender offer (the "**Tier I Exemption**") and Rule 802 (the "**802 Exemption**") under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (the "**U.S. Securities Act**"), and otherwise in accordance with the disclosure and procedural requirements of Finnish law, including with respect to the Tender Offer timetable, settlement procedures, withdrawal, waiver of conditions and timing of payments, which are different from those of the United States. In particular, the financial information included in the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document has been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in Finland, which may not be comparable to the financial statements or financial information of U.S. companies. The Tender Offer is made to Caverion's shareholders resident in the United States on the same terms and conditions as those made to all other shareholders of Caverion to whom an offer is made. Any informational documents, including the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document and this Supplement Document are being disseminated to U.S. shareholders on a basis comparable to the method that such documents are provided to Caverion's other shareholders.

As permitted under the Tier I Exemption, the settlement of the Tender Offer is based on the applicable Finnish law provisions, which differ from the settlement procedures customary in the United States, particularly as regards to the time when payment of the consideration is rendered. The Tender Offer, which is subject to Finnish law, is being made to the U.S. shareholders in accordance with the applicable U.S. securities laws, and applicable exemptions thereunder, in particular the Tier I Exemption and the 802 Exemption. To the extent the Tender Offer is subject to U.S. securities laws, those laws only apply to U.S. shareholders and will not give rise to claims on the part of any other person. U.S. shareholders should consider that (whether paid initially in cash or upon redemption of any Alternative Consideration Instruments) the offer price for the Tender Offer is being paid in EUR and that no adjustment will be made based on any changes in the exchange rate.

To the extent permissible under applicable law or regulations, the Offeror and its affiliates or its brokers and its brokers' affiliates (acting as agents for the Offeror or its affiliates, as applicable) may from time to time after the date of the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document and during the pendency of the Tender Offer, and other than pursuant to the Tender Offer, directly or indirectly purchase or arrange to purchase Shares or any securities that are convertible into, exchangeable for or exercisable for Shares. These purchases may occur either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. To the extent information about such purchases or arrangements to purchase is made public in Finland, such information will be disclosed by means of a press release or other means reasonably calculated to inform U.S. shareholders of Caverion of such information. In addition, the financial advisers to the Offeror may also engage in ordinary course trading activities in securities of Caverion, which may include purchases or arrangements to purchase such securities. To the extent required in Finland, any information about such purchases will be made public in Finland in the manner required by Finnish law.

Neither the SEC nor any U.S. state securities commission has approved or disapproved the Tender Offer (including the offer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments), passed upon the merits or fairness of the Tender Offer (including the offer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments), or passed any comment upon the adequacy, accuracy or completeness of the disclosure in relation to the Tender Offer (including in relation to the Alternative Consideration Instruments). Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION, AND THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS CONSTITUTE "RESTRICTED SECURITIES" PURSUANT TO THE SECURITIES ACT, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITH UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR, THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT), EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL SECURITIES LAWS.

The receipt of cash pursuant to the Tender Offer by a U.S. shareholder may be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and under applicable U.S. state and local, as well as foreign and other, tax laws. Each holder of Shares is urged to consult its independent professional advisers immediately regarding the tax and other consequences of accepting the Tender Offer.

It may be difficult for Caverion's shareholders and the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to enforce their rights and any claims they may have arising under the U.S. federal securities laws, since the Offeror and Caverion are located in a non-U.S. jurisdiction and some or all of their respective officers and directors may be residents of non-U.S. jurisdictions. Caverion shareholders and the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments may not be able to sue the Offeror or Caverion or their respective officers or directors in a non-U.S. court for violations of the U.S. federal securities laws. It may be difficult to compel the Offeror and Caverion and their respective affiliates to subject themselves to a U.S. court's judgment.

NEITHER THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE TENDER OFFER, PASSED ANY COMMENTS UPON THE MERITS OR FAIRNESS OF THE TENDER OFFER, PASSED ANY COMMENT UPON THE ADEQUACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR THIS SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT OR PASSED ANY COMMENT ON WHETHER THE CONTENT IN THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR IN THIS SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT IS CORRECT OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE IN THE UNITED STATES.

The section "*Restrictions and Important Information – Availability of Documents*" shall be amended by replacing the section with the following paragraph:

Availability of Documents

The Finnish language versions of the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document are available on the internet at www.caverion-offer.fi and www.nordea.fi/caverion-ostotarjous as of February 10, 2023. The English language translations of the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document are available on the internet at www.caverion-offer.com and www.nordea.fi/caverion-offer as of February 10, 2023. In addition, the Offeror's Articles of Association are available on the internet at www.caverion-offer.fi.

Certain Key Dates

The first paragraph of the section "*Restrictions and Important Information – Certain Key Dates*" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The following timetable sets forth certain key dates relating to the Tender Offer, provided that the Offer Period has not been extended further or discontinued in accordance with, and subject to, the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer and applicable laws and regulations:

Announcement of the Tender Offer	November 3, 2022
Offer Period commences	November 24, 2022
Announcement of the Offeror's decision to improve the consideration of the Tender Offer and other amendments made to the Combination Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer	<u>January 24, 2023</u>
Offer Period expires at the earliest, unless extended or discontinued in accordance with, and subject to, the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer and applicable laws and regulations; any possible extension of the Offer Period will be announced by way of a stock exchange release as soon as practically possible	January 31<mark>February 28</mark>, 2023
Announcement of the preliminary result of the Tender Offer (preliminary)	February 1 <u>March 1</u> , 2023
Announcement of the final result of the Tender Offer (preliminary)	February 6 <u>March 6</u> , 2023
Payment of the Offer Price <u>and issuance of the Alternative Consideration</u> <u>Instruments and recording of the non-transferable entries representing the</u> <u>Deferred Payment Rights to the equity savings accounts (preliminary)</u>	February 27By March 27. 2023

Due to the anticipated process for obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals, permits, clearances and consents required for the completion of the Tender Offer, the <u>All regulatory approvals required for the completion of</u> the Tender Offer is currently expected to be completed during the first quarter of 2023. In case the necessary regulatory approvals, permits, clearances and consents have not been obtained by the end of the Offer Period, the Offeror may extend the Offer Period further in order to receive the necessary regulatory approvals. The Offeror will announce, by way of stock exchange releases, any possible extension of the Offer Period as soon as practically possible as well as any other information required to be announced in accordance with applicable laws and regulations."

PARTIES RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT

This section "Parties Responsible for the Supplement Document" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

Offeror North Holdings 3 Oy Business Identity code: 3313575-3 Domicile: Helsinki, Finland Address: c/o Roschier, Attorneys Ltd., Kasarmikatu 21 A, FI-00130 Helsinki

STATEMENT REGARDING THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT

This section "Statement Regarding the Supplement Document" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

The Offeror is responsible for the information contained in the Supplement Document for the purposes of the Alternative Consideration Offering. To the best knowledge of the Offeror, the information contained in this Supplement Document is in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

NO INCORPORATION OF WEBSITE INFORMATION

This section "No Incorporation of Website Information" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

The Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document are being published on the Offeror's website relating to the Tender Offer at www.caverion-offer.com. Information presented on such website relating to the Tender Offer or any other website is not part of this Supplement Document and the prospective investors should not rely on such information in making their decision to invest in the Alternative Consideration Instruments. However, as

an exception to the above, the Tender Offer Document and possible supplements of the Tender Offer Document are part of this Supplement Document.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATED INFORMATION

This section "Financial Statements Related and Certain Other Information" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

Financial Statements

The Offeror was incorporated on September 20, 2022. The Offeror's first financial year was September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022, after which the Offeror's financial year is from January 1 to December 31. The Offeror has prepared the first financial statements for the financial period of September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022 in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Standards ("FAS"). The financial statements of the Offeror included in this Supplement Document are unaudited, and the Offeror will supplement the Tender Offer Document with the audited financial statements and an auditor's report when the audit has been completed.

Auditors

The Offeror's auditor is Ernst & Young Oy, Authorized Public Accountants, with Antti Suominen, Authorised Public Accountant, as the auditor with principal responsibility. The business address of the principal auditor and Ernst & Young Oy is Alvar Aallon katu 5 C, FI-00100 Helsinki, Finland. Antti Suominen is registered in the auditor register in accordance with Chapter 6 Section 9 in the Finnish Auditing Act (1141/2015, as amended).

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION

This section "Risk Factors Relating to the Alternative Consideration" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

An investment in the Alternative Consideration Instruments involves risks, which may be significant. The following describes the risks relating to the Alternative Consideration Offering and to the approval of the Alternative Consideration, as well as the risks relating to the Offeror and the Alternative Consideration. Potential investors should carefully review the information contained in this Supplement Document and, in particular, the risk factors described below.

Each of the risk factors presented may have a material impact on the Offeror's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Alternative Consideration as well as the value of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. As a result, investors who have invested in them could lose part or all of their investment. The description of risk factors below is based on information available and estimates made on the date of this Supplement Document and, therefore, is not necessarily exhaustive. As a part of the assessment of the risk factors, the Offeror has considered the probability of the realization of the possible risks. Potential events that may or may not materialize are presented in the risk factors. Due to the uncertainty characteristic for these potential courses of events, the Offeror is unable to present an exact estimate for all the risks on the probability of such events materializing or failing to materialize.

The risks presented herein have been divided into four categories based on their nature. These categories are:

- A. Risks Related to the Offeror;
- B. Risks Related to the Offeror's Indebtedness;
- *C. Risks Related to the Alternative Consideration; and*
- D. Risks Specific to U.S. Shareholders.

Within each category, the risk estimated to be the most material in the assessment of the Offeror, taking into account the negative impact on the Offeror and the probability of their occurrence, is presented first. However, the order in which the risk factors are presented after the first risk factor in each category is not intended to reflect either the relative probability or the potential impact of their materialization. The order of presentation of the categories does not represent any evaluation of the materiality of the risks within that category, when compared to risks in another category.

A. Risks Related to the Offeror

1. The Offeror is a holding company that has no revenue generating operations of its own and will depend on the financing provided by its direct and indirect parent companies and other parties, including the equity commitment letters provided by the Consortium Investors, to be able to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration.

The Offeror was incorporated for the purposes of the Tender Offer, and it has no other business operations. Upon completion of the Tender Offer, the Offeror will become a significant shareholder of the Company, but it will have limited access (if any) to the cash flows generated by the Company before the maturity date of the Alternative Consideration. The Offeror is dependent upon the debt and equity financing provided by its direct and indirect parent companies as well as the funding commitments set out in the equity commitment letters (the "Equity Commitment Letters") provided to the Offeror by Bain Capital Europe Fund VI, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis (the "Consortium Investors") to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration. See also "– *Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*". If any of the Consortium Investors is unable to fulfill its funding obligations to the Offeror under its respective Equity Commitment Letter, the Offeror would need to find additional financing to redeem the Alternative Consideration Instruments and to pay the amounts under the Deferred Payment Rights. In such case, it cannot be assured that the Offeror will have sufficient funds to pay amounts due under the Alternative Consideration in full or in part.

B. Risks Related to the Offeror's Indebtedness

1. The Offeror may incur additional debt in the future, which could make it difficult to service its debt and/or repay such debt if and when due, including repaying the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights.

The Offeror has sufficient funds in the form of equity and debt commitments to fund the completion of the Tender Offer (including redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights). However, there is no restriction in the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (see Annex F) on the amount of secured or unsecured debt which the Offeror may raise or issue after issuing of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. Any debt that the Offeror incurs could be structurally or effectively senior to the Alternative Consideration, even though the Offeror's ability to incur further secured and/or unsecured debt will be limited by the restrictions contained in the Senior Secured Financing Documents (as defined below). While the lenders under the Senior Secured Facilities (as defined below) will undertake not to receive any security over the Trust Account (as defined below) and/or the Alternative Consideration Funding (as defined below) nor to have any recourse to the Alternative Consideration Funding, the Offeror will be permitted to incur other debt that matures prior to the Alternative Consideration. The Offeror's inability to service its debts could have a material adverse effect on the Offeror's financial position and its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Alternative Consideration and any further indebtedness, whether secured or unsecured, may reduce the amount recoverable under the Alternative Consideration upon winding-up or insolvency of the Offeror, or may worsen the position and priority of the holders of the Alternative Consideration in such winding-up or insolvency procedure, despite the certain arrangements made under the Equity Commitment Letters to ensure the Offeror's ability to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration.

C. Risks Related to the Alternative Consideration

1. Secured creditors will have prior claim to the Offeror's assets that constitute their collateral as compared to holders of the Alternative Consideration.

The Offeror intends to draw up to EUR 325 million senior secured term loan facility and up to EUR 150 million multicurrency senior secured revolving credit facility in connection with the completion of the Tender Offer (see "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*". In addition, the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not restrict the Offeror's ability to incur additional secured financial indebtedness. In the event of any liquidation of the assets of the Offeror in any bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror, holders of secured indebtedness will have a prior claim to those assets that constitute their collateral. In any of the foregoing events, it cannot be assured that there will be sufficient assets to pay amounts due under the Alternative Consideration.

The Consortium Investors have, however, given equity commitments to the Offeror to fund the Offeror for the purposes of the Tender Offer under the Equity Commitment Letters and the designated purpose of such equity commitments is to enable payment of the aggregate Cash Offer Price and redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of amounts under the Deferred Payment Rights to holders of equity savings accounts by the Offeror. Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters, the Offeror has undertaken not to apply the funding drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters for other purposes, such as the repayment of the Offeror's other financial indebtedness, and any bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror does not affect the Offeror's ability to draw down such commitments under the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters. Additionally, pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters, any Alternative Consideration Funding drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters by the Offeror will be deposited into a segregated Trust Account to be held by the Offeror on trust for the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights, and pursuant to the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents (as defined below), the lenders under the Senior Secured Facilities (as defined below) will undertake not to receive any security over the Trust Account and/or the Alternative Consideration Funding nor to have any recourse to the Alternative Consideration Funding (as described under section "Background and Objectives -Financing of the Tender Offer – Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents").

The Senior Secured Facilities (as defined below) are secured with the Offeror's other assets. In the event of any liquidation of the assets of the Offeror in any bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror, it cannot be assured that the Offeror will have sufficient funds to pay amounts due under the Alternative Consideration in full or in part if the funds under the Equity Commitment Letters would not be available to the Offeror in full or in part.

2. Investors are exposed to credit risk in respect of the Offeror and may lose their investment in the Alternative Consideration Instruments or value of the Deferred Payment Right.

Investors in the Alternative Consideration Instruments and persons choosing to receive the Deferred Payment Right as offer consideration carry a credit risk relating to the Offeror. The repayment of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights by the Offeror to investors will, therefore, be dependent on the Offeror's ability to meet its payment obligations, which in turn, as the Offeror has no business operations, are effectively dependent on financing to be made available to the Offeror pursuant to the funding commitments set out in the Equity Commitment Letters.

3. Holders of the Alternative Consideration are indirectly exposed to credit and counterparty risk in respect of the Consortium Investors.

Holders of the Alternative Consideration carry an indirect credit and counterparty risk relating to the Consortium Investors in respect of the funding commitments set out in the Equity Commitment Letters. If any of the Consortium Investors is unable to fulfill its funding obligations to the Offeror under its respective Equity Commitment Letter, the Offeror would need to find additional financing to redeem the Alternative Consideration Instruments and to pay the amounts under the Deferred Payment Rights. In case any of the Consortium Investors would be subject to insolvency proceedings, such Consortium Investor might not be able to fulfill its funding obligations under the Equity Commitment Letter in whole or in part and/or in time and, consequently, the Offeror might not have a sufficient amount of funds to redeem the Alternative Consideration Instruments and to pay the amounts under the Deferred Payment Rights on or following the Redemption Date in full or in part.

4. The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights constitute unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Offeror.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights constitute direct, unsecured, unguaranteed and unsubordinated obligations of the Offeror. The Alternative Consideration is not secured by any assets or guaranteed by any person or entity. No one other than the Offeror will accept and have any liability in respect of any failure by the Offeror to pay any amount due under the Alternative Consideration in full or in part.

This means that in the event of bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror, the holders of the Alternative Consideration normally receive payment after any priority creditors have been fully paid, and, in such a case, any amounts paid under the Equity Commitment Letters to the Offeror could potentially be shared with any other unsecured creditors of the Offeror despite the certain arrangements made under the Equity Commitment Letters to ensure the Offeror's ability to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration. However, the Offeror has no business operations and currently has no other material unsecured indebtedness apart from the liabilities arising under the Alternative Consideration, which are to be satisfied by the funding to be drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters, and pursuant to the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents, the lenders under the Senior Secured Facilities will undertake not to receive any security over the Trust Account and/or the Alternative Consideration Funding nor to have any recourse to the Alternative Consideration Funding (as described above).

5. No direct recourse to payments under the Equity Commitment Letters provided by the Consortium Investors.

The Consortium Investors are legally separate and distinct from the Offeror. Even though the Consortium Investors have under the Equity Commitment Letters agreed to make available funds to the Offeror also for the purposes of the repayment of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the payment of the amounts under the Deferred Payment Rights, the holders of the Alternative Consideration would not in the event of the Offeror's bankruptcy have a direct recourse to the Consortium Investors for any amounts payable under the Equity Commitment Letters.

6. No voting rights with respect to shareholders meetings of the Offeror.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights carry no voting rights with respect to shareholders meetings of the Offeror. In addition, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, each holder of the Alternative Consideration Instruments agrees, with respect to the Alternative Consideration Instruments it holds, not to exercise, and to waive in advance, its right in accordance with the Finnish Companies Act to object to any merger or demerger. Accordingly, when choosing the Deferred Payment Right, a shareholder commits in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer to waive

this right. Consequently, the holders of the Alternative Consideration cannot influence any decisions by the Offeror's shareholders concerning, for instance, the capital structure of the Offeror.

7. Interests of the Offeror's shareholders may be inconsistent with those of the holders of the Alternative Consideration.

As at the date of this Supplement Document, the Offeror is indirectly wholly-owned by North Luxco. North Luxco was incorporated to be the holding company in the acquisition structure and is currently wholly-owned by Bain Luxco. It is expected that immediately after the completion of the Tender Offer and the cash investments to be made by the Consortium Investors in North Luxco, the Offeror will be indirectly owned by Bain Luxco, Security Trading, Fennogens, Corbis and Goldman Sachs Asset Management. The interests of the Offeror's indirect shareholders may, in certain circumstances, conflict with the interests of the holders of the Alternative Consideration, particularly if the Offeror encounters financial difficulties or is unable to pay its debts when due. In addition, the Offeror's indirect shareholders' interests may differ from the interests of the holders of the Alternative Consideration, inter alia, in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures, financings or other transactions that, in their judgment, could enhance the value of their equity investments, even though such transactions could involve risks to the Offeror's ability to meet its obligations under the Alternative Consideration.

8. The Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not contain covenants governing the Offeror's financial standing or operations and do not limit its ability to change its business or merge, demerge, effect acquisitions or asset sales or otherwise effect significant transactions that could have a material adverse effect on the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the holders of the Alternative Consideration.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not, in addition to the rights of creditors in general, contain any financial or other covenants concerning the Offeror's financial standing or operations or other provisions designed to protect holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights from a reduction in the creditworthiness of the Offeror. In particular, the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not restrict the Offeror's ability to change its business or enter into a merger, demerger, acquisition, asset sale or other significant transaction that could materially alter its existence, legal structure of organization, jurisdiction of incorporation or regulatory regime and/or its composition and business. If the Offeror was to enter into such a transaction, holders of the Alternative Consideration could be materially and adversely affected.

9. The Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not contain any put rights or event of default provisions to the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights and the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are not able to enforce prepayment of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the holders of the Payment Rights are not able to enforce payment before the Redemption Date due to an event of default or any other adverse developments.

The holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are not entitled to demand prepayment of their Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the Redemption Date and the holders of the Deferred Payment Rights are not entitled to demand payment of the Deferred Payment Rights prior to the Redemption Date, and the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights do not contain any put rights or event of default provisions to the benefit of their holders. Accordingly, the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are not able to enforce prepayment under the Alternative Consideration Instruments before the Redemption Date and the holders of the Deferred Payment Rights are not able to enforce prepayment of the Deferred Payment Rights. The Offeror, on the other hand, has a right to elect prepayment before the Redemption Date in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and as to the Deferred Payment Rights, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer.

10. Rights to payments that have not been claimed within three years are prescribed.

If the payment under the Alternative Consideration has not been claimed within three years from the original due date thereof, the right to such payment shall become void. Such prescription may incur financial losses to such holders of the Alternative Consideration who have not claimed payment under the Alternative Consideration within the prescription time of three years.

11. The Offeror is not obliged to compensate for withholding tax or similar on the Alternative Consideration.

If any withholding tax, public levy or similar is imposed in respect of payments to holders of the Alternative Consideration on amounts due pursuant to the Alternative Consideration, the Offeror is neither obliged to grossup or otherwise compensate holders of the Alternative Consideration for the lesser amounts the holders of the Alternative Consideration of withholding tax or similar nor entitled to a premature redemption of the Alternative Consideration.

12. There may not be an active trading market for the Alternative Consideration Instruments, in which case the investor's ability to sell the Alternative Consideration Instruments will be limited. The Deferred Payment Rights do not have secondary markets.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will not be subject to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility, and the Offeror does not intend to make a request for admission of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility. Consequently, the Alternative Consideration Instruments will not have established secondary market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market for the Alternative Consideration Instruments does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Alternative Consideration Instruments comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market. The Deferred Payment Rights are fully non-transferable and, consequently, there cannot be a secondary market for those.

13. The Alternative Consideration Instruments are not subject to public trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility, which limits the investor's access to information regarding the Offeror and the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are not subject to public trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility or other trading venue. Therefore, the Offeror is not subject to same disclosure obligations as companies whose securities are listed on a regulated market or multilateral trading facility, including the disclosure obligations set out in the Finnish Securities Markets Act or Market Abuse Regulation ((EU) No 596/2014, as amended). Consequently, the holders of Alternative Consideration Instruments do not have same access to information regarding the Offeror and the Alternative Consideration Instruments as they would have when investing in listed securities.

14. Investors whose financial activities are denominated in a currency other than the euro are subject to exchange rate and exchange control risks.

The Offeror will pay principal on the Alternative Consideration Instruments in euro. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated in a currency other than the euro. Exchange rates may change significantly and authorities with jurisdictions over the investor's currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the investor's currency relative to the euro would decrease the investor's currency equivalent value of the principal payable on the Alternative Consideration Instruments. As a result, investors may receive less principal than expected, or no principal at all.

15. The completion of transactions relating to the Alternative Consideration Instruments or to the Deferred Payment Right to holders of equity savings accounts is dependent on Euroclear Finland Ltd's operations and systems.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are issued in the book-entry securities system of Euroclear Finland Ltd ("Euroclear Finland") and to demonstrate the Deferred Payment Rights, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded to a shareholder's equity savings account in the book-entry securities system of Euroclear Finland. Pursuant to the Act on Book-Entry Systems and Clearing Operations (348/2017, as amended), the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights will not be evidenced by any physical note or document of title other than statements of account made by Euroclear Finland or its account operator. The Alternative Consideration Instruments are dematerialized securities and the Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable rights to payment from the Offeror, and settlement measures regarding these are effected only through the relevant entries in the book-entry system and registers maintained by Euroclear Finland and its account operators. Therefore, timely and successful completions of transactions relating to the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights, including but not limited to transfers of, and payments made under, the

Alternative Consideration Instruments, depend on the book-entry securities system being operational and that the relevant parties, including but not limited to the payment transfer bank and the account operators of holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or holders of equity savings accounts, are functioning when transactions are executed. Any malfunction or delay in the book-entry securities system or any failure by any relevant party may result in the transaction involving the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights not taking place as expected or being delayed, which may cause financial losses or damage to the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or holders of equity savings accounts.

Neither the Offeror nor any other third party will assume any responsibility for the timely and full functionality of the Finnish book-entry securities system. Payments under the Alternative Consideration Instruments will be made in accordance with the laws governing the Finnish book-entry securities system, the rules of Euroclear Finland and the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. For purposes of payments under the Alternative Consideration, it is the responsibility of each person who have chosen the Alternative Consideration to maintain with its respective book-entry account operator up to date information on applicable bank accounts.

16. U.S. securities laws only apply to U.S. shareholders.

To the extent the Tender Offer is subject to U.S. securities laws, those laws only apply to U.S. shareholders and will not give rise to claims on the part of any other person.

D. Risks Specific to U.S. Shareholders

1. Caverion and the Offeror are not required to file any reports with the SEC.

The Shares are not listed on a U.S. securities exchange and Caverion or the Offeror are not subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and are not required to, and do not, file any reports with the SEC thereunder. As such, holders of Alternative Consideration Instruments may receive a different level of periodic reporting than what they would receive from a company subject to the period reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

2. The Tender Offer is being made pursuant to Finnish law, and financial information included herein has been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in Finland.

The Tender Offer is made in the United States pursuant to the Tier I Exemption and the 802 Exemption under the U.S. Securities Act, and otherwise in accordance with the disclosure and procedural requirements of Finnish law, including with respect to the Tender Offer timetable, settlement procedures, withdrawal, waiver of conditions and timing of payments, which are different from those of the United States. In particular, the financial information included in this Supplement Document has been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in Finland, which may not be comparable to the financial statements or financial information of U.S. companies. As such, disclosure accompanying the Tender Offer may differ from disclosure in a U.S. tender offer.

3. You may be unfamiliar with settlement procedures of the Tender Offer.

As permitted under the Tier I Exemption, the settlement of the Tender Offer is based on the applicable Finnish law provisions, which differ from the settlement procedures customary in the United States, particularly as regards to the time when payment of the consideration is rendered. As such, a holder of Alternative Consideration Instruments may be unfamiliar with settlement procedures of the Tender Offer.

4. The receipt of cash pursuant to the Tender Offer by a U.S. shareholder may be a taxable transaction.

The receipt of cash and the receipt of the Alternative Consideration Instruments pursuant to the Tender Offer as well as receipt of the cash payments under the Alternative Consideration Instruments by a U.S. shareholder may be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and under applicable U.S. state and local, as well as foreign and other, tax laws.

5. The Offeror is located in a non-U.S. jurisdiction and some or all of its officers and directors may be residents of non-U.S. jurisdictions, which may make it difficult for the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to enforce their rights and claims.

It may be difficult for the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to enforce their rights and any claims they may have arising under the U.S. federal securities laws, since the Offeror is located in a non-U.S. jurisdiction and some or all of its officers and directors may be residents of non-U.S. jurisdictions. The holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments may not be able to sue the Offeror or its officers or directors in a non-U.S. court for violations of the U.S. federal securities laws. It may be difficult to compel the Offeror and its affiliates to subject themselves to a U.S. court's judgment.

OVERVIEW OF THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION OFFERING AND THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS

This section "Overview of the Alternative Consideration Offering and the Alternative Consideration Instruments" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

This overview is an overview of certain key features of the Alternative Consideration Offering and the Alternative Consideration Instruments. Any decision by an investor to invest in the Alternative Consideration Instruments should be based on a consideration of the Tender Offer Document and this Supplement Document as a whole.

Words and expressions in this section shall have the meanings defined in the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments as set out in Annex F. The following information is applicable also to the Deferred Payment Rights, taking into account, however, that those are non-transferable and are not securities.

Issuer:	North Holdings 3 Oy, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Finland.
Risk Factors:	The Alternative Consideration involves risks. The principal risk factors relating to the Offeror and the Alternative Consideration are discussed in the section " <i>Risk Factors Relating to the Alternative Consideration</i> " of this Supplement Document.
Ranking of the Alternative Consideration Instruments:	The Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights constitute direct, unsecured, unguaranteed and unsubordinated obligations of the Offeror ranking <i>pari passu</i> among each other and with all other unsecured, unguaranteed and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Offeror, save for such obligations as may be preferred by mandatory provisions of law.
	The Consortium Investors have given equity commitments to the Offeror to fund the Offeror for the purposes of the Tender Offer under the Equity Commitment Letters. Any Alternative Consideration Funding drawn down by the Offeror pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters will be deposited into a segregated bank account to be held by the Offeror on trust for the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights and such bank account will only contain funds designated for that purpose.
Form of the Alternative Consideration Instruments:	Securities in dematerialized, book-entry form issued in the Infinity-book- entry securities system maintained by Euroclear Finland Oy.
Depository and settlement system:	Euroclear Finland Oy, Urho Kekkosen katu 5 C, FI-00100, Helsinki, Infinity book-entry securities system of Euroclear Finland Oy.
Resolutions and authorizations:	The Offeror's board of directors has resolved to offer the Alternative Consideration on January 24, 2023 and will resolve upon the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the completion trades of the Tender Offer.
Issue Price and Effective yield of the Alternative Consideration	100% / not applicable.

Instruments:

Minimum subscription amount:	EUR 8.50, equaling the nominal value of one Alternative Consideration Instrument exchangeable for one tendered Share in the Tender Offer.
Denomination of a book-entry unit:	EUR 8.50.
Issue Date:	The date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer.
Redemption Date:	The date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (such date of first issuance being the date of the first completion trades of the Tender Offer). If the Redemption Date falls on a date which is not a Business Day, the Redemption Date will be postponed to the next following Business Day. For the purposes of these terms and conditions, " Business Day " shall mean a day on which the European TARGET2 System is open for the settlement of payment orders.
Interest on the Alternative Consideration Instruments:	The Alternative Consideration Instruments shall not accrue any interest.
Redemption:	The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be redeemed at their full nominal amount of EUR 8.50 on the Redemption Date. The payments under the Deferred Payment Rights will be paid on the same Redemption Date. The Issuer is entitled to redeem all (but not only some) of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights prior to the Redemption Date at their nominal principal amount. Such redemption shall be made by the Issuer giving not less than five Business Days' (as defined above) notice by a press release.
Covenants, mandatory repurchase and Events of Default:	No events of default provisions.
Issuer Agent and Paying Agent:	Nordea Bank Abp, Satamaradankatu 5, FI-00020 Nordea, Finland.
Applicable law:	Finnish law.
Description of restrictions on free transferability of the Alternative Consideration Instruments:	Each Alternative Consideration Instrument will be freely transferable after it has been registered into the respective book-entry account of the relevant holder of such Alternative Consideration Instruments. The Deferred Payment Rights relating to the equity savings accounts are non-transferable.
Listing:	The Alternative Consideration Instruments are not subject to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading facility, and the Offeror does not intend to make a request for admission of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to trading on any regulated market or multilateral trading

	facility or any other trading venue. The Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable.
Interests of the participants of the Alternative Consideration Offering:	Bain Luxco, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis have formed the Consortium for the purposes of the Tender Offer by the Offeror. The Alternative Consideration Offering forms part of the Tender Offer.
	The Consortium Investors have given equity commitments to the Offeror to fund the Offeror for the purposes of the Tender Offer under the Equity Commitment Letters. Any Alternative Consideration Funding drawn down by the Offeror pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters will be deposited into a segregated bank account to be held by the Offeror on trust for the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights and such bank account will only contain funds designated for that purpose.
Estimated net amount of the proceeds:	There will be no monetary proceeds accruing to the Offeror from the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. The Alternative Consideration Instruments are being issued as consideration for the acquisition of Shares in the Tender Offer.
Reason for the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments:	The Offeror's reason for the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments is the provision of the alternative consideration in connection with the Tender Offer.
Date of the entry of the Alternative Consideration Instruments to the book-entry system:	The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be recorded into the book- entry account of each shareholder of Caverion who has validly accepted, and not validly withdrawn, the Tender Offer and elected to receive the Alternative Consideration Instruments on the date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer or on or about the first (1 st) Finnish banking day following such completion trades in accordance with the Finnish legislation governing book-entry system and book-entry accounts as well as regulations and decisions of Euroclear Finland Oy.

BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES

Background to the Tender Offer and Offeror's Strategic Plans

The second paragraph of the section "*Background and Objectives – Background to the Tender Offer and Offeror's Strategic Plans*" shall be amended by adding the following passages that are underlined and set in bold, and deleting the words marked with strikethrough:

"In addition, the GSAM Note Purchasers (as defined below) are providing <u>structurally</u> subordinated debt financing to the PIK Borrower (as defined below) in connection with the Tender Offer. In connection with the subordinated debt financing arrangement, it has been agreed that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will also make an equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in North Luxco subject to certain conditions, as described below under section "– *Financing of the Tender Offer*". If the equity co-investment is made by Goldman Sachs Asset Management, and assuming that the Offeror obtains more than-ninety (90) percent <u>sixty-six and two</u> <u>thirds (66 2/3) percent</u> of the Shares and voting rights carried by the Shares, it is expected that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will own approximately 6–7 <u>6.3–9.99</u> percent of the common shares in North Luxco <u>depending on, inter alia, the acceptance level of the Tender Offer and the total offer consideration payable</u> <u>by the Offeror. Such co-investment will dilute the Consortium members' ownership in North Luxco in equal</u> proportion."

The eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth and fifteenth paragraphs of the section "*Background and Objectives* – *Background to the Tender Offer and Offeror's Strategic Plans*" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The Offeror and Caverion have on November 3, 2022 entered into a Combination Agreement, which was <u>amended on January 24, 2023</u>, under which the Offeror is committed to make the Tender Offer. The principal terms and conditions of the Combination Agreement have been described in "Summary of the Combination Agreement" below.

After reviewing the Tender Offer and its terms and conditions, as well as other available information, the Board of Directors of Caverion, represented by a quorum comprising the non-conflicted members of the Board of Directors, has unanimously decided to recommend that the shareholders of Caverion accept the Tender Offer (see "- Statement by the Board of Directors of Caverion" and Annex C below). The Board of Directors of Caverion received an opinion, dated November 3, 2022, of Caverion's exclusive financial adviser, BofA Securities, to the effect that, as of the date of such opinion, the Offer Price to be paid to holders of Shares (other than Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis and their respective affiliates) pursuant to the Tender Offer, was fair, from a financial point of view, to such holders, which opinion was based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken as more fully described in the opinion. The opinion of BofA Securities was provided for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors of Caverion and does not constitute a recommendation as to whether any holders of Shares should tender such Shares in connection with the Tender Offer, how any holders of Shares should act in connection with the Tender Offer or any related matter. The complete opinion is attached as Appendix 1 to the statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion, issued on November 18, 2022, and attached as Annex C to this Tender Offer Document. Based on the amendments to the Combination Agreement and to the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer made on January 24, 2023, the Board of Directors of Caverion has on February 9, 2023 supplemented its statement issued on November 18, 2022 (the statement published on February 9, 2023 is hereinafter referred to as "Updated Statement").

As at the date of this Tender Offer Document, the members of the Consortium hold in aggregate 36,379,262 Shares in Caverion, representing in aggregate approximately 26.66 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion. The Consortium members have committed to tender all Shares held by them to the Tender Offer pursuant to the agreements entered into among the Consortium members. <u>Each of Security Trading, Fennogens and</u> <u>Corbis as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü have agreed to</u> <u>waive part of the increased offer price and to sell all their Shares to the Offeror for a cash consideration of</u> <u>EUR 7.50 per Share in, or in connection with the completion of, the Tender Offer.</u>

Elo Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Mandatum Life Insurance Company Limited and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, together representing approximately 15.35 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion, as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü, which are not part of the Consortium but are related parties to the Consortium members and together represent approximately 0.48 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion, have irrevocably undertaken to accept the Tender Offer renewed their irrevocable undertakings to accept the Tender Offer, and Veritas Pension Insurance Company Ltd., which holds approximately 0.55 percent of all Shares and votes in Caverion, has given an irrevocable undertaking to accept the Tender Offer, as further described in section "– Undertakings by Shareholders".

The Shares held by the Consortium members combined with the irrevocable undertakings to support the Tender Offer represent approximately 42.50 <u>43.05</u> percent of all the outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion in aggregate."

Share-based Long-term Incentive Plans of Caverion

The second paragraph of the section "Background and Objectives – Share-based Long-term Incentive Plans of Caverion" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"According to the Combination Agreement, if the completion of the Tender Offer takes place, Caverion will settle in cash all outstanding rewards to be paid under the Performance Share Plans 2022–2024, 2021–2023 and 2020– 2022 based on achievement of performance targets per September 30, 2022 and pro-rated to time passed, all outstanding rewards to be paid under the fourth instalment under the conditional Matching Share Plan 2018–2022 and all outstanding rewards to be paid under the conditional Restricted Share Plans 2022–2024, 2021–2023 and 2020–2022. The outstanding rewards under the Performance Share Plans and the conditional Restricted Share Plans will be paid three (3) months after the completion of the Tender Offer and the outstanding rewards under the fourth instalment of the conditional Matching Share Plan will be paid at the completion of the Tender Offer, in each case on condition that the participant has not voluntarily resigned from his/her position at Caverion prior to that time. The payment of the outstanding rewards under the conditional Matching Share Plan may also occur sooner if required under applicable plan terms. The total amount payable by Caverion under these plans amounts to approximately <u>EUR 11.7 million EUR 17.8 million</u> (excluding social security costs)."

Financing of the Tender Offer

The first paragraph of the section "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*" shall be amended by adding the passages that are underlined and set in bold and by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The Offeror has received equity commitments, as evidenced in equity commitment letters addressed to the Offeror and debt commitments (and interim debt commitments) as evidenced in debt commitment letters addressed to the Offeror, and the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy (the "PIK Borrower") has received debt commitments (and interim debt commitments), as evidenced in a debt commitment letter addressed to the PIK Borrower, in each case, to finance the Tender Offer at completion and compulsory redemption proceedings. if any. The Offeror's obligation to complete the Tender Offer is not conditional upon availability of financing (assuming that all the Conditions to Completion of the Tender Offer are otherwise satisfied or waived by the Offeror). The Offeror's and the PIK Borrower's commitments for equity and debt funding (as applicable respectively) are evidenced by (i) equity commitment letters executed by the members of the Consortium (the "Equity Commitment Letters"); (ii) senior secured debt commitment documents, which include commitments to enter into the Senior IFA (as defined below) and the Senior Facilities Agreement (as defined below) and (iii) PIK debt commitment documents, which include a commitment to enter into the Interim PIK Facility (as defined below) and the Notes Subscription Agreement (as defined below) relating to the PIK Notes (as defined below), in each case, subject to and in accordance with the terms of each debt commitment letter, to finance (in part) the payment of the aggregate Offer Price for all of the Shares in connection with the Tender Offer and in connection with the subsequent compulsory redemption thereafter and, in case of the Equity Commitment Letters, the possible payment of any termination fee by the Offeror. In addition, North Luxco has entered into a commitment letter with Nordea Bank Abp concerning a settlement facility to facilitate the execution and settlement of the completion trades of the Tender Offer."

Equity Commitment Letters

The first paragraph of the section "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – Equity Commitment Letters" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"Bain Capital Funds Bain Capital Europe Fund VI, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis (the "Consortium Investors") have executed Equity Commitment Letters on customary terms in respect of their contribution to the equity funding of the Offeror. The Equity Commitment Letters provide financing that is expected to be in aggregate EUR 954.6 958.1 million for funding the Offer Price as well as funding the possible payment of the termination fee to cover expense reimbursement for the Company under certain circumstances as set out in the Combination Agreement. Following payment of the contribution to the Offeror in accordance with the Equity Commitment Letters, no part thereof shall under the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters be repaid or returned to the Consortium Investor or any of its affiliates or otherwise applied by the Offeror for any other purpose than for payment of the aggregate Cash Offer Price and redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights to holders of equity savings accounts (or the possible payment of the termination fee if the Tender Offer is not completed or payment of the compulsory redemption of minority Shares if the Offeror's shareholding as a result of the completion of the Tender Offer exceeds ninety (90) percent of the Shares and voting rights in the Company).

The Consortium Investors have irrevocably confirmed and undertaken under the Equity Commitment Letters to provide funding for the Offeror to redeem the Alternative Consideration Instruments and pay the Deferred Payment Rights in connection with the Tender Offer (such funding being the "Alternative Consideration Funding") on or prior to the date on which any amounts outstanding under the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights will become due and payable pursuant to the terms thereof. Pursuant to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letters, any Alternative Consideration Funding drawn down under the Equity Commitment Letters by the Offeror will be deposited into a segregated bank account of the Offeror located in England & Wales, which is subject to laws of England (the "Trust Account"). As set out in the Equity Commitment Letters, the Alternative Consideration Funding will be held in the Trust Account by the Offeror on trust for the benefit of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the Deferred Payment Rights and solely for the purpose of redeeming the Alternative Consideration Instruments and paying the Deferred Payment Rights. Pursuant to the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents, the lenders under the Senior Secured Facilities will undertake not to receive any security over the Trust Account and/or the Alternative Consideration Funding nor to have any recourse to the Alternative Consideration Funding."

The third paragraph of the section "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – Equity Commitment Letters*" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passage with the passage that is underlined and set in bold:

"In addition, in connection with the financing arrangement described under "- PIK Debt Financing Documents", it has been agreed that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will, subject to the below conditions, make a EUR 60 million equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in North Luxco, which would reduce the equity financing provided by the Consortium members correspondingly. The equity co-investment forms part of the overall financing terms agreed between the Consortium and Goldman Sachs Asset Management and the selection of Goldman Sachs Asset Management as financing provider and the terms of the financing arrangement and the equity co-investment have been agreed on the basis of an extensive financing process by the Consortium including the evaluation of possibilities for obtaining both senior debt financing and hybrid financing alternatives. The right and obligation of Goldman Sachs Asset Management to make the equity co-investment is subject to satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the equity co-investment, including: (i) the satisfaction or waiver of all Conditions to Completion; (ii) the Tender Offer having been validly accepted with respect to Shares representing, together with any other Shares otherwise acquired by the Offeror prior to or during the Offer Period, at least seventy-five (75) more than fifty (50) percent of the Shares and voting rights in the Company; and (iii) the GSAM Note Purchasers (as defined below) providing debt financing (including any structurally subordinated debt financing) in connection with the Tender Offer. In the event that Goldman Sachs Asset Management would not make the equity co-investment, the Consortium members would cover the full amount of equity funding required for the Tender Offer."

Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents

A new section titled "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents" shall be added before the section titled "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – PIK Debt Financing Documents":

"In addition, National Westminster Bank plc and NatWest Markets N.V. (together the "**NatWest Entities**") and UBS Europe SE (together with the NatWest Entities the "**Arrangers**") shall arrange and provide senior secured debt financing to the Offeror in connection with the Tender Offer.

The Arrangers have executed debt commitment letters relating to senior secured facilities and interim senior secured facilities (together, the "Senior Secured Debt Commitment Letter"), pursuant to which the Arrangers shall arrange and provide up to (i) a EUR 325 million senior secured term loan facility (the "Term Loan") and (ii) a EUR 150 million multicurrency senior secured revolving credit facility (the "Revolving Credit Facility" and together with the Term Loan, the "Senior Secured Facilities") by entering into a long form senior secured term and revolving facilities agreement (the "Senior Facilities Agreement"), subject to the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Commitment Letter.

To the extent the Senior Facilities Agreement is not in place at the closing date of the Tender Offer, the Arrangers shall provide for up to (i) EUR 325 million senior secured term loan facility and (ii) EUR 150 million multicurrency senior secured revolving credit facility (together, the "Interim Senior Facilities") pursuant to the (once executed) fundable interim facilities agreement relating to the Interim Senior Facilities (the "Senior IFA", and together with the Senior Secured Debt Commitment Letter, the "Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents") to be entered into with the Offeror. Pursuant to the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents, the lenders under the Senior Secured Facilities will undertake not to receive any security over the Trust Account and/or the Alternative Consideration Funding nor to have any recourse to the Alternative Consideration Funding.

The intention of the Offeror and the Arrangers (without prejudice to the Arrangers' obligations to make available the Interim Senior Facilities under the Senior IFA (once executed)) is that the debt financing made available under the Senior Secured Debt Financing Documents be made available under the Senior Facilities Agreement to be documented in accordance with the terms of the Senior Secured Debt Commitment Letter.

The Interim Senior Facilities are (and the Senior Secured Facilities shall be) provided on customary European "certain funds" basis, and thus their availability is subject only to the following limited conditions:

- a) no event of default has occurred and is continuing in respect of a payment default, the breach of a major undertaking, a major misrepresentation, certain invalidities and repudiations, certain insolvency proceedings (and similar events elsewhere), or a change of control;
- b) it has not become illegal since the date on which the Arrangers first became a party to make available or allow to remain outstanding the Interim Senior Facilities (or the Senior Secured Facilities as the case may be) under the relevant facilities agreement; and
- c) the provision of certain customary documentary and commercial conditions precedent, each of which is satisfied or within the sole and absolute control of the Offeror as at this date, in respect of the Senior IFA."

PIK Debt Financing Documents

The first paragraph of the section "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – PIK Debt Financing Documents" shall be amended by adding the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The PIK Borrower as borrower and the following affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or funds managed by its affiliates forming part of Goldman Sachs Asset Management: WSSS Investments O, S.à r.l., WSSS Investments P, S.à r.l., WSSS (C) Investments O, S.à r.l., WSSS Investments G, S.à r.l., WSSS Investments S, S.à r.l., WSSS Investments D, S.à r.l., BSCH III Designated Activity Company and WSSS (CT) Investments O, S.à r.l. (together, the "**GSAM Note Purchasers**") as note purchasers have entered into a debt commitment letter relating to the PIK Notes (as defined below) and the Interim PIK Facility (as defined below) (as supplemented by supplemental deeds dated January 10, 2023, January 20, 2023 and February 10, 2023) (the "PIK Debt **Commitment Letter**"), pursuant to which the GSAM Note Purchasers shall subscribe for and purchase up to EUR 125 million "pay-if-you-want" notes¹ (the "**PIK Notes**") by entering into, along with the PIK Borrower and Kroll Agency Services Limited as agent and Kroll Trustee Services Limited security agent, a long form notes subscription agreement (the "**Notes Subscription Agreement**"), subject to the terms of the PIK Debt Commitment Letter."

The fourth paragraph of the section "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer – PIK Debt Financing Documents" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passage with the passage that is underlined and set in bold:

- b) "the provision of a customary closing certificate (which is already in agreed form) confirming, *inter alia*, the following:
 - (i) the satisfaction or waiver of all Conditions to Completion, provided that the Tender Offer has been validly accepted with respect to the Shares representing, together with any other Shares otherwise acquired by the Offeror prior to or during the Offer Period, at least seventy-five (75) more than fifty (50) percent of the Shares and voting rights in the Company;"

Offeror's Future Plans in Respect of the Shares

Redemption under the Finnish Companies Act

The third paragraph of the section "Background and Objectives – Offeror's Future Plans in Respect of the Shares – Redemption under the Finnish Companies Act" shall be amended by removing the following strikethrough passage:

"Pursuant to the Finnish Companies Act, a shareholder that holds more than half (1/2) of the shares and voting rights carried by the shares present in a company's general meeting has sufficient voting rights to decide on the appointment of board members and distribution of dividends, and a shareholder that holds more than two-thirds (2/3) of the shares and voting rights carried by the shares present in a company's general meeting has sufficient voting rights to decide upon the merger of a company into another company. Should the Offeror elect to amend or waive the condition to completion of the Tender Offer that requires the reaching of shareholding of more than ninety (90) percent of the Shares and voting rights carried by the Shares and then complete the Tender Offer, and should the Offeror's shareholding in Caverion be less than ninety (90) percent of the Shares and voting rights carried by the Shares, it is still possible that Caverion could in any event be subject to certain corporate measures and transactions, including for example a merger into another company, the issuance of shares in the Company by way of derogation from the shareholders' pre-emptive subscription rights, a change of domicile to a jurisdiction that allows more flexibility, or amendments to the Company's Articles of Association. However, the Offeror has not taken any resolutions regarding any such measures or transactions. Additionally, as set out in the Combination Agreement, the Offeror and Caverion have agreed that after the Offeror has publicly confirmed that it will complete the Tender Offer, the Board of Directors of the Company shall, within four (4) business days of a written request by the Offeror, resolve to convene an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of the Company for the purpose of changing the composition of the Board of Directors, provided that the proposals for agenda items put forward by the Offeror in such request are limited to the size, composition and remuneration of the Board of Directors of the Company. For more information on an amendment to or a waiver of the conditions to completion of the Tender Offer, see "Summary of the Combination Agreement - Conditions to Completion" and "Terms and Conditions of the Tender Offer – Conditions to Completion of the Tender Offer"."

Statement by the Board of Directors of Caverion

The first paragraph of the section "*Background and Objectives – Statement by the Board of Directors of Caverion*" shall be amended by adding the passages that are underlined and set in **bold**:

"After reviewing the Tender Offer and its terms and conditions, as well as other available information, the Board of Directors of Caverion represented by a quorum comprising the non-conflicted members of the Board of Directors, has unanimously decided to recommend that the shareholders of Caverion accept the Tender Offer. The

¹ The term "pay-if-you-want" notes refers to the type of notes under which the borrower may elect to either pay interest in kind (with such interest capitalizing at the end of the interest period and thereafter being treated as part of the principal amount of the instrument) or in cash.

Statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 13 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, is attached to this Tender Offer Document as Annex C. The Board of Directors of Caverion received an opinion, dated November 3, 2022, of Caverion's exclusive financial adviser, BofA Securities, to the effect that, as of the date of such opinion, the Offer Price to be paid to holders of Shares (other than Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis and their respective affiliates) pursuant to the Tender Offer, was fair, from a financial point of view, to such holders, which opinion was based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken as more fully described in the opinion. The opinion of BofA Securities was provided for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors of Caverion and does not constitute a recommendation as to whether any holders of Shares should tender such Shares in connection with the Tender Offer, how any holders of Shares should act in connection with the Tender Offer or any related matter. The complete opinion is attached as Appendix 1 to the Statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion, issued on November 18, 2022, and attached as Annex C to this Tender Offer Document. Based on the amendments to the Combination Agreement and to the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer made on January 24, 2023, the Board of Directors of Caverion has on February 9, 2023 published the Updated Statement in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 13 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act. According to the Updated Statement, the Board of Directors of Caverion represented by a quorum comprising the non-conflicted members of the Board of Directors, continues to unanimously recommend that the shareholders of Caverion accept the Tender Offer. The Updated Statement is attached to this Tender Offer Document as Annex G. The Board of Directors of Caverion has received an updated opinion, dated January 24, 2023, of Caverion's exclusive financial adviser, BofA Securities, to the effect that, as of the date of such opinion, the increased Offer Price to be paid to holders of Shares (other than Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis and their respective affiliates) pursuant to the Tender Offer (under its improved terms announced on January 24, 2023), was fair from a financial point of view, to such holders, which opinion was based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken as more fully described in such opinion. The opinion of BofA Securities was provided for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors of Caverion and does not constitute a recommendation as to how any holders of Shares should act in connection with the Tender Offer or any related matter. The updated opinion of BofA Securities is attached as Appendix 1 to the Updated Statement issued by the Board of Directors of Caverion."

Undertakings by Shareholders

The first, second and third paragraphs of the section "*Background and Objectives – Undertakings by Shareholders*" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"Elo Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Mandatum Life Insurance Company Limited and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, together representing approximately 15.35 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion, as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü, which are not part of the Consortium but are related parties to the Consortium members and together represent approximately 0.48 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion, have irrevocably undertaken to accept the Tender Offer renewed their irrevocable undertakings to accept the Tender Offer, and Veritas Pension Insurance Company Ltd., which holds approximately 0.55 percent of all Shares and votes in Caverion, has given an irrevocable undertaking to accept the Tender Offer. These irrevocable undertakings may be terminated among other terms only in the event that the Offeror withdraws or does not complete the Tender Offer of one that a competing offer is announced by a third party with a consideration of at least EUR 7.70 8.95 per share and the Offeror does not match or exceed the consideration offered in such competing offer within a certain period of time.

As at the date of this Tender Offer Document, the members of the Consortium hold in aggregate 36,379,262 Shares in Caverion, representing in aggregate approximately 26.66 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion. The Consortium members have committed to tender all Shares held by them to the Tender Offer pursuant to the agreements entered into among the Consortium members. <u>Each of Security Trading, Fennogens and</u> <u>Corbis as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü have agreed to</u> <u>waive part of the EUR 1.00 increase to the offer price and to sell all their Shares to the Offeror for a cash</u> <u>consideration of EUR 7.50 per Share in, or in connection with the completion of, the Tender Offer.</u>

The Shares held by the Consortium members combined with the irrevocable undertakings to support the Tender Offer represent approximately 42.50 <u>43.05</u> percent of all the outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion in aggregate."

Regulatory Approvals

The section "*Background and Objectives – Regulatory Approvals*" shall be amended by replacing the section with the following paragraph:

"The Offeror received unconditional merger control clearance from the European Commission on January 11, 2023, and unconditional foreign investment clearances in Austria on January 18, 2023, in Denmark on January 20, 2023, and in Finland on January 26, 2023. Consequently, as announced by the Offeror on January 26, 2023, all regulatory approvals required for the completion of the Tender Offer have been received."

INFORMATION ON THE PRICING OF THE TENDER OFFER

Grounds for Determining the Offer Price

The first and second paragraphs of the section "Information on the Pricing of the Tender Offer – Grounds for Determining the Offer Price" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The Tender Offer was announced by the Offer on November 3, 2022 <u>and amendments to its terms and</u> <u>conditions were announced on January 24, 2023.</u> <u>Pursuant to the terms of the Tender Offer, the</u> <u>shareholders of Caverion are given the possibility to choose either (i) a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per</u> <u>Share payable in nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer</u> <u>implemented through the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment</u> <u>Right for each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer-or (ii) the Cash Offer Price of EUR 8.00 for each</u> <u>Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer-</u> with the Offer Price of EUR 7.00 in cash for each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer-

The Offer Price has <u>The Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration have</u> been determined based on 136,472,645 issued and outstanding Shares. Should the Company increase the number of Shares that are issued and outstanding on the date hereof as a result of a new share issue, reclassification, stock split (including a reverse split) or any other similar transaction with dilutive effect, or should the Company distribute a dividend or otherwise distribute funds or any other assets to its shareholders, or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to any of the settlements of the completion trades <u>of the Tender Offer</u> (whether after the expiry of the Offer Period or any Subsequent Offer Period (as defined below)), resulting in the distribution of funds not being payable to the Offeror, the Offer Perice the Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration payable by the Offer or shall be reduced accordingly on a euro-for-euro basis as set out in section "*Terms and Conditions of the Tender Offer – Offer Price*". However, each of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights are not subject to any adjustments after such an Alternative Consideration Instrument has been delivered or a Deferred Payment Right has been recorded to the shareholder but, instead, the adjustments will occur only if the distribution of funds or other corporate event entitling to the adjustment or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to the settlement of relevant completion trades of the Tender Offer."

Offer Price

The section "Information on the Pricing of the Tender Offer – Offer Price" shall be amended by replacing the section with the following paragraphs:

"The Cash Offer Price represents a premium of approximately:

- 70.58 percent compared to EUR 4.69, *i.e.* the closing price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki on November 2, 2022, the last trading day immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer;
- 69.85 percent compared to EUR 4.71, *i.e.* the three-month volume-weighted average trading price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer; and
- 71.34 percent compared to EUR 4.67, *i.e.* the six-month volume-weighted average trading price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer.

The Alternative Consideration represents a premium of approximately:

- 81.24 percent compared to EUR 4.69, *i.e.* the closing price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki on November 2, 2022, the last trading day immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer;
- 80.47 percent compared to EUR 4.71, *i.e.* the three-month volume-weighted average trading price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer; and
- 82.05 percent compared to EUR 4.67, *i.e.* the six-month volume-weighted average trading price of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer."

Other Public Tender Offers Regarding the Shares

The section "Information on the Pricing of the Tender Offer – Other Public Tender Offers Regarding the Shares" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"To the knowledge of the Offeror, no public tender offer for the Shares or securities entitling to Shares has been made by any third party during the 12 months preceding the date of this the Tender Offer Document <u>dated</u> <u>November 24, 2022</u>. Caverion announced on January 10, 2023, that Crayfish Bidco Oy, a Finnish company controlled by Triton Fund V, has announced a voluntary public cash tender offer pursuant to which Crayfish Bidco Oy proposes to acquire all issued and outstanding shares in Caverion at an offer price of EUR 8.00 per share. According to Caverion's stock exchange release, the tender offer by Crayfish Bidco Oy is subject to certain conditions, including the tender offer having been validly accepted with respect to shares representing, together with any other shares otherwise acquired by Crayfish Bidco Oy prior to or during the offer period, more than ninety (90) percent of the outstanding shares and voting rights in Caverion, and the receipt by Crayfish Bidco Oy of all necessary regulatory approvals. Caverion's stock exchange release of January 10, 2023 is attached as Appendix D to the Tender Offer Document and the Offeror's stock exchange release concerning, inter alia, its views on the competing offer of January 11, 2023, is attached as Appendix E to the Tender Offer Document."

SUMMARY OF THE COMBINATION AGREEMENT

Background to the Combination Agreement

The first paragraph of the section "Summary of the Combination Agreement – Background to the Combination Agreement" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passage with the passage that is underlined and set in bold:

"The Offeror and the Company have on November 3, 2022 entered into the Combination Agreement<u>, as amended</u> on January 24, 2023, pursuant to which the Offeror hereby makes a voluntary recommended public cash-tender offer for all the Shares in Caverion (the Offeror and Caverion hereafter each individually a "Party" and together "Parties")."

Offer Period and Offer Price

The second paragraph of the section "Summary of the Combination Agreement – Offer Period and Offer Price" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passage with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"The Combination Agreement provides that the Offeror shall offer to acquire all the Shares for a consideration of EUR 7.00 in each for each Share by giving the shareholders of the Company the possibility to elect either (i) a cash consideration of EUR 8.00 for each Share, or (ii) one (1) Alternative Consideration Instrument for each Share, subject to the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer. The Offeror shall instead of the Alternative Consideration Instruments offer shareholders holding Shares on Finnish equity savings accounts the possibility to elect a deferred payment right of EUR 8.50 per Share to be paid in cash nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer. The Offer Price has been determined based on 136,472,645 issued and outstanding Shares. Should the Company increase the number of Shares that are issued and outstanding on the date hereof as a result of a new share issue, reclassification, stock split (including a reverse split) or any other similar transaction with dilutive effect, or should the Company distribute a dividend or otherwise distribute funds or any other assets to its shareholders, or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to any of the settlements of the completion trades (whether after the expiry of the Offer Period or any Subsequent Offer Period (as defined below)), resulting in the distribution of funds not being payable to the Offeror, the Offer Price payable by the Offeror shall be reduced accordingly on a euro-for-euro basis as set out in section "Terms and Conditions of the Tender Offer – Offer Price". However, after their issuance, the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights are not subject to any adjustments."

Recommendation by the Board of Directors of Caverion

The first paragraph of the section "Summary of the Combination Agreement – Recommendation by the Board of Directors of Caverion" shall be amended by adding the passage that is underlined and set in bold:

(a) "The Board of Directors of Caverion, represented by a quorum comprising the non-conflicted members of the Board of Directors, has resolved unanimously, subject to the terms and conditions of the Combination Agreement, to recommend that the holders of Shares accept the Tender Offer and tender their Shares in the Tender Offer ("Recommendation"). In the Combination Agreement, the Board of Directors of Caverion has undertaken to issue a formal written statement to this effect. The statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion containing the Recommendation has been included as Annex C to this Tender Offer Document and the Updated Statement has been included as Annex G to this Tender Offer Document."

Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Undertakings

The second paragraph of the section "Summary of the Combination Agreement – Representations, Warranties, Covenants and Undertakings" shall be amended by replacing the following strikethrough passages with the passages that are underlined and set in bold:

"In the Combination Agreement, Caverion has given certain customary undertakings, such as (i) the Company and its Affiliated Entities (as defined below, subject to certain exemptions) conducting their respective businesses in all material respects in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice until the completion of the Tender Offer the date of the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders to be convened at the written

request of the Offeror after the completion of the Tender Offer, including but not limited to, refrain from making or implementing: material changes in Caverion's corporate structure or in any material agreement with suppliers, resellers, partners, customers or other material business relationships; any mergers, acquisitions, divestments, minority investments or joint ventures, subject to certain exceptions; any material corporate transactions, investments, loans, incurrence of indebtedness for borrowed money, incurrence of liens or other encumbrances, acquisitions or divestments of assets other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; any agreements or commitments that are not entered into on arms' length terms; any material amendments to any material agreements; any agreements or commitments including any "non-compete" or similar undertaking that would restrict the business of the Offeror and its subsidiaries or the Group (as defined below) following the completion of the Tender Offer; any change of articles of association or any material change to the accounting or tax principles or practices other than as reasonably required as a result of any changes on applicable laws and regulations; any commencement, settlement or compromise of any material legal or tax proceedings or of material claims against third parties, subject to certain exceptions; any act or omission that could reasonably be expected to result in the abandonment of or failure to maintain Caverion's material intellectual property; any decision or proposal concerning or constituting distribution of dividends or other assets, any change in the number of shares in or share capital of the Company or its Affiliated Entities; any action or omission that would have the effect of materially increasing the liability for taxes; or any legally binding agreement or commitment to do any of the foregoing; (ii) assistance and cooperation between the Parties in doing all things necessary or advisable to consummate the Tender Offer, and the making of all required registrations and filings with relevant competition authorities and with other relevant governmental entities or regulatory authorities to obtain the approvals, permits, consents, clearances or other actions reasonably required in those jurisdictions for the completion of the Tender Offer set out in the Combination Agreement; and (iii) the settlement in cash of outstanding rewards under Caverion's long-term share-based incentive plans. As soon as the Offeror has publicly announced that it will complete the Tender Offer, the Board of Directors of the Company shall, at the written request of the Offeror, resolve to convene an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of the Company within a certain period of time after such request for the purpose of changing the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company, and the Offeror has undertaken that the proposals for agenda items put forward by the Offeror in such request are limited to the size, composition and remuneration of the Board of Directors of the Company. In addition, the Company has agreed to act as the technical issuer of the other rights type of entries to the equity savings accounts demonstrating the Deferred Payment Rights in the Finnish book-entry system maintained by Euroclear Finland with no liability for any payments to be made to the holders of the Deferred Payment Rights by virtue of its acting as the technical issuer."

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE TENDER OFFER

The section "*Terms and Conditions of the Tender Offer*" shall be amended by replacing the section with the following paragraphs:

Object of the Tender Offer

Through a voluntary public tender offer in accordance with Chapter 11 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act (746/2012, as amended, the "Finnish Securities Markets Act") and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, North Holdings 3 Oy (the "Offeror"), a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Finland, offers to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion Corporation (the "Company" or "Caverion") that are not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries (the "Shares" or, individually, a "Share") (the "Tender Offer"). It is expected that following the Completion Date (as defined below), the Offeror will be indirectly owned by North (BC) Lux Holdco SARL ("Bain Luxco") (a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP and/or its affiliates), Security Trading Oy ("Security Trading"), Fennogens Investments S.A. ("Fennogens"), Corbis S.A. ("Corbis") and Goldman Sachs Asset Management (as defined below).

Bain Luxco, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis have formed a consortium (the "Consortium") for the purposes of the Tender Offer.

In addition, (i) certain funds managed by affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) certain affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("Goldman Sachs Asset Management") are providing structurally subordinated debt financing to the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy in connection with the Tender Offer. In connection with the structurally subordinated debt financing arrangement, it has been agreed that Goldman Sachs Asset Management will also make an equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in the indirect parent company of the Offeror, North Lux Topco SARL, subject to the completion of the Tender Offer and, in each case, satisfaction of the conditions precedent to the structurally subordinated debt financing and equity co-investment. The debt and equity financing arrangements are described under section "*Background and Objectives* – *Financing of the Tender Offer*".

The Offeror and the Company have on November 3, 2022 entered into a combination agreement, as amended on January 24, 2023 (the "**Combination Agreement**") pursuant to which the Offeror makes the Tender Offer.

Offer Price

The Tender Offer was announced by the Offeror on November 3, 2022 (the "**Announcement**") and amendments to its terms and conditions were announced on January 24, 2023.

The shareholders of Caverion are given the possibility to choose either: (i) a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per Share payable in nine months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer implemented through the issuance of a debt instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 (the "Alternative Consideration Instrument") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer, or (ii) an immediate cash consideration of EUR 8.00 upon completion of the Tender Offer (the "Cash Offer Price") for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued by the Offeror on the date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50, and will be redeemed at their full nominal amount upon their maturity on the date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments set out in Annex F of this Supplement Document.

One (1) Share entitles its holder to one (1) Alternative Consideration Instrument issued by the Offeror. The nominal principal amount and book-entry unit of each Alternative Consideration Instrument is EUR 8.50. The Alternative Consideration Instrument shall not accrue any interest. The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be redeemed at their full nominal amount of EUR 8.50 on their date of maturity which is the date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (the "**Redemption Date**").

The shareholders of Caverion can choose whether they would like to receive the Cash Offer Price of EUR 8.00 or the Alternative Consideration Instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 for each Share validly

tendered in the Tender Offer, subject to any adjustments as set out below. However, shareholders holding Shares on Finnish equity savings accounts are not eligible to elect the Alternative Consideration Instrument in respect of such Shares held on equity savings accounts for regulatory reasons. Shareholders of Caverion who hold their Shares on equity savings accounts will be able to receive only a non-transferable deferred payment right of EUR 8.50 per Share as the Alternative Consideration to be paid in cash on the Redemption Date (the "**Deferred Payment Right**", and together with the Alternative Consideration Instruments the "Alternative Consideration"). The Alternative Consideration and the Cash Offer Price are jointly referred to as the "**Offer Price**"). The Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable rights to payment from the Offeror, and to demonstrate these in the bookentry system, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded to a shareholder's equity savings account.

The Offeror is entitled to redeem all (but not only some) of the Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the Redemption Date at their nominal principal amount. In such case, the Deferred Payment Rights would also be paid on that early redemption date. Such early redemption and repayment shall be made by the Offeror giving not less than five business days' notice to the holders of the Alternative Consideration by a press release.

Each holder of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights agrees, with respect to the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the Deferred Payment Rights it holds, not to exercise, and hereby waives in advance, its right in accordance with the Finnish Companies Act (624/2006, as amended) to object to any merger or demerger.

The Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration have been determined based on 136,472,645 issued and outstanding Shares. Should the Company increase the number of Shares that are issued and outstanding on the date hereof as a result of a new share issue, reclassification, stock split (including a reverse split) or any other similar transaction with dilutive effect, or should the Company distribute a dividend or otherwise distribute funds or any other assets to its shareholders, or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to any of the settlements of the completion trades of the Tender Offer (whether after the expiry of the Offer Period or any Subsequent Offer Period (as defined below)), resulting in the distribution of funds not being payable to the Offeror, the Cash Offer Price and the Alternative Consideration payable by the Offeror shall be reduced accordingly on a euro-for-euro basis. However, each of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights are not subject to any adjustments after such an Alternative Consideration Instrument has been delivered or a Deferred Payment Right has been recorded to the shareholder but, instead, the adjustments will occur only if the distribution of funds or other corporate event entitling to the adjustment or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to the settlement of relevant completion trades of the Tender Offer.

The potential adjustment of the Offer Price pursuant to the above paragraph may also occur after the expiration of the Offer Period but prior to the settlements of the completion trades of the Tender Offer if the settlement date of any of the above-mentioned distribution of funds or other event that results in an adjustment of the Offer Price occurs prior to the settlement of the completion trades of the Tender Offer. Any adjustment of the Offer Price pursuant to the above paragraph will be announced by way of a stock exchange release. If the Offer Price is adjusted during the Offer Period, the Offer Period will continue for at least ten (10) Finnish banking days following such announcement.

Offer Period

The offer period for the Tender Offer commenced on November 24, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. (Finnish time) and expires on February 28, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. (Finnish time), unless the offer period is extended or any extended offer period is discontinued as described below (the "**Offer Period**"). Before February 13, 2023, the acceptance of the Tender Offer can only be made with the Cash Offer Price.

The Offeror may extend the Offer Period (i) at any time until the Conditions to Completion (as defined below) have been fulfilled or waived and/or (ii) with a Subsequent Offer Period (as defined below) in connection with the announcement whereby the Offeror declares the Tender Offer unconditional or the announcement of the final result of the Tender Offer whereby the Offeror also declares the Tender Offer unconditional, as set forth below. The Offeror will announce a possible extension of the Offer Period, including the duration of the extended Offer Period, which shall be at least two (2) weeks or until further notice beyond two (2) weeks, by a stock exchange release on the first (1st) Finnish banking day following the expiration of an already extended Offer Period or an extension of a discontinued extended Offer Period on the first (1st) Finnish banking day following the expiration of an already extended Offer Period or a discontinued extended Offer Period, at the latest.

According to Chapter 11, Section 12 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, the duration of the Offer Period in its entirety may be ten (10) weeks at the maximum. Provided that the business operations of the Company are not hindered for longer than is reasonable, as referred to in Chapter 11, Section 12, Subsection 2 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, the Offeror may extend the Offer Period beyond ten (10) weeks for a particular reason. The Offeror has extended the Offer Period until February 28, 2023 and reserves the right to extend the Offer Period in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, taking into account the regulations and guidelines 9/2013 of the Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority (the "FIN-FSA") on Takeover Bids and Mandatory Bids (as may be amended or re-enacted from time to time) (the "FIN-FSA Regulations and Guidelines"). The expiry date of any extended Offer Period will in such case, unless published in connection with the announcement of the extension of the Offer Period, be published by the Offeror at least two (2) weeks before such expiry.

The Offeror may discontinue any extended Offer Period. The Offeror will announce its decision on the discontinuation of any extended Offer Period as soon as possible after such a decision has been made and, in any case, no less than two (2) weeks prior to the expiration of the discontinued extended Offer Period. If the Offeror discontinues an extended Offer Period, the Offer Period will expire at an earlier time on a date announced by the Offeror.

The Offeror reserves the right to extend the Offer Period in connection with the announcement whereby the Offeror declares the Tender Offer unconditional or the announcement of the final result of the Tender Offer as set forth in "– *Announcement of the Result of the Tender Offer*" below (such extended Offer Period, the "**Subsequent Offer Period**"). In the event of such Subsequent Offer Period, the Subsequent Offer Period will expire on the date and at the time determined by the Offeror in such an announcement. The expiration of a Subsequent Offer Period will be announced at least two (2) weeks before the expiration of such Subsequent Offer Period. The Offeror may also extend the Subsequent Offer Period by announcing this through a stock exchange release on the first (1st) Finnish banking day following the initially expected expiration of the Subsequent Offer Period, at the latest.

Conditions to Completion of the Tender Offer

A condition to the completion of the Tender Offer is that the requirements set forth below for the completion of the Tender Offer (the "**Conditions to Completion**") are fulfilled on or by the date of the Offeror's announcement of the final result of the Tender Offer in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 18 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, or, to the extent permitted by applicable law, their fulfilment is waived by the Offeror:

- (a) The Tender Offer has been validly accepted with respect to the Shares representing, together with any other Shares otherwise acquired by the Offeror prior to or during the Offer Period, more than sixty-six and two thirds (66 2/3) percent of the Shares and voting rights in the Company calculated in accordance with Chapter 18 Section 1 of the Finnish Companies Act (624/2006, as amended, the "Finnish Companies Act");
- (b) [As announced by the Offeror on January 26, 2023, this condition (b) has been fulfilled.] The receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, permits, clearances and consents, including without limitation approvals required under applicable foreign direct investment laws and competition clearances (or, where applicable, the expiry of relevant waiting periods) required under applicable competition laws or other regulatory laws in any jurisdiction for the completion of the Tender Offer, and that any conditions set out in such approvals, permits, clearances or consents, including, but not limited to, any requirements for the disposal of any assets of the Company or any reorganization of the business of the Company, are reasonably acceptable to the Offeror in that they are not materially adverse to the Offeror or the Company in view of the Tender Offer and have been satisfied or complied with to the extent necessary;
- (c) No Material Adverse Change (as defined below) has occurred on or after signing date of the Combination Agreement;
- (d) The Offeror has not received information after signing date of the Combination Agreement previously undisclosed to it that constitutes or results in a Material Adverse Change (as defined below);
- (e) No information made public by the Group (as defined below) or disclosed by the Company to the Offeror being materially inaccurate, incomplete, or misleading, and the Company not having failed

to make public any information that should have been made public by it under applicable laws, including the rules of Nasdaq Helsinki Ltd ("**Nasdaq Helsinki**"), provided that, in each case, the information made public, disclosed or not disclosed or the failure to disclose information constitutes a Material Adverse Change (as defined below);

- (f) No legislation or other regulation has been issued and no court or regulatory authority of competent jurisdiction has given a decision or issued any regulatory action that would wholly or in any material part prevent, postpone or frustrate the completion of the Tender Offer;
- (g) The Board of Directors of the Company has issued its unanimous recommendation that the holders of the Shares accept the Tender Offer and tender their Shares in the Tender Offer and the recommendation remains in full force and effect and has not been withdrawn, modified, cancelled or amended (excluding, however, any technical modification or change of the recommendation required under applicable laws or the Helsinki Takeover Code as a result of a competing offer or otherwise so long as the recommendation to accept the Tender Offer is upheld); and
- (h) The Combination Agreement has not been terminated and remains in full force and effect.

The Conditions to Completion set out herein are exhaustive. As announced by the Offeror on January 26, 2023, all regulatory approvals required for the completion of the Tender Offer have been received and therefore the item (b) above has been fulfilled. The Offeror may invoke any of the Conditions to Completion so as to cause the Tender Offer not to proceed, to lapse or to be withdrawn, if the circumstances which give rise to the right to invoke the relevant Condition to Completion have a significant meaning to the Offeror in view of the Tender Offer, as referred to in the FIN-FSA Regulations and Guidelines and the Helsinki Takeover Code. The Offeror reserves the right to waive, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, any of the Conditions to Completion that have not been fulfilled. If all Conditions to Completion have been fulfilled or the Offeror has waived the requirements for the fulfilment of all or some of them no later than at the time of announcement of the final results of the Tender Offer, the Offeror will consummate the Tender Offer in accordance with its terms and conditions after the expiration of the Offer Period by purchasing Shares validly tendered in the Tender Offer and paying the Offer Price to the holders of Shares that have validly accepted the Tender Offer.

"Affiliated Entities" means the Company's subsidiaries including, without limitation, all branch and representative offices of the Company and/or its subsidiaries. Affiliated Entities shall also include CG FH St. Pölten GmbH and Oy Botnia Mill Service AB subject to certain exemptions.

"Group" means the Company and the Affiliated Entities, taken as a whole.

"Material Adverse Change" means (a) the Company or any of its Affiliated Entities becoming insolvent, subject to administration, bankruptcy or any other equivalent insolvency proceedings or, if any legal proceedings or corporate resolution is taken by or against any of them in respect of any such proceedings, such action could reasonably be expected to result in the commencement of such proceedings, provided, in each case, that such proceedings could, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse change in, or material adverse effect to, the business, assets, liabilities, prospects, condition (financial, trading or otherwise) or results of operation of the Group; (b) any divestment or reorganization of all or any material part of the assets of the Group; or (c) any event, condition, circumstance, development, occurrence, change, effect or fact (any such item an "Effect") that individually or in the aggregate, has, results in or would reasonably be expected to have or result in a material adverse effect on the business, assets, liabilities, prospects, condition (financial, trading or otherwise) or results of operations of the Group, excluding:

- (i) any Effect in political, financial, industry, economic or regulatory conditions generally (including any Effect in interest or currency rates), so long as such Effect does not have a disproportionate effect on the Group, relative to other companies and groups in the same industries in jurisdictions where the Group conducts business;
- (ii) any Effect resulting from or caused by natural disasters, outbreak of major hostilities or any act of war or terrorism or change in prevailing COVID-19 situation so long as such Effect does not have a disproportionate effect on the Group, relative to other companies and groups in the same industries in jurisdictions where the Group conducts business;

- (iii) the failure of the Company to meet any internal or published projections, forecasts, estimates or predictions in respect of revenues, earnings, net asset value or other financial or operating metrics before, on or after the date of the Combination Agreement, it being understood that nothing in this sub-clause (iii) shall prevent or otherwise affect the determination as to whether any change or effect underlying such failure to meet projections, forecasts, estimates or predictions constitutes a Material Adverse Change;
- (iv) changes in the market price or trading volume of the Company's securities after the date of the Combination Agreement, it being understood that nothing in this sub-clause (iv) shall prevent or otherwise affect the determination as to whether any change or effect underlying such change constitutes a Material Adverse Change;
- (v) any Effect resulting from any actions taken by the Company at the express written request or direction of the Offeror;
- (vi) any change in applicable statutes or other applicable legal or regulatory conditions, so long as such change does not have a disproportionate effect on the Company and its Affiliated Entities, taken as a whole, in comparison to other companies and groups in the same industries in jurisdictions where the Group conducts business; or
- (vii) any Effect directly attributable to (x) an act or omission carried out or omitted by the Offeror in connection with the Tender Offer or (y) the announcement or completion of the Tender Offer (including the effect of any change of control or similar clauses in contracts entered into by the Group but only to the extent such contracts or clauses have been Fairly Disclosed (as defined below)) or (z) performance of obligations under the Combination Agreement by the Company insofar as such Effect is not caused by the Company's breach of the Combination.

For the sake of clarity, under no circumstances shall any Material Adverse Change be deemed to exist to the extent such Effect causing a Material Adverse Change has been Fairly Disclosed (as defined below) in the Due Diligence Information (as defined below) by or on behalf of the Company, in each case, prior to the date of the Combination Agreement.

"Fairly Disclosed" means disclosure of an actual fact, matter or event set out in the Due Diligence Information (as defined below) in a sufficiently clear and detailed manner so as to enable a professional and prudent offeror, having completed its review of the Due Diligence Information (as defined below) with the support of its professional advisors, acting diligently and with due care, to reasonably identify and assess the nature, scope and effects of such fact, matter or event so disclosed.

"**Due Diligence Information**" means (i) the information publicly disclosed by the Company pursuant to the rules of Nasdaq Helsinki, the Finnish Securities Market Act and the Regulation (EU) No 596/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on market abuse (as amended) before the signing date of the Combination Agreement, and (ii) the information provided by the Company in the virtual data room made available to the Offeror or its advisers as well as in formally scheduled management presentations carried out by the Company with the Offeror or its advisors.

Obligation to Increase the Offer Price and to Pay Compensation

The Offeror and Bain Luxco, each respectively, reserve the right to acquire Shares before, during and/or after the Offer Period (including any extension thereof) and any Subsequent Offer Period in public trading on Nasdaq Helsinki or otherwise.

Should the Offeror or another party acting in concert with the Offeror in a manner as stipulated in Chapter 11, Section 5 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act acquire Shares after the Announcement and before the expiry of the Offer Period (including any Subsequent Offer Period) on more favourable terms than those of the Tender Offer, the Offeror must, in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 25 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, amend the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer to correspond with the terms and conditions of said acquisition on more favourable terms (the "Increase Obligation"). In such case, the Offeror will make public its Increase Obligation without delay and will increase, in connection with the completion of the Tender Offer. The Offer Price to account for the difference between the consideration paid in such an acquisition on more favourable terms and the offer consideration paid to those shareholders that have accepted the Tender Offer.

Should the Offeror or another party acting in concert with the Offeror in a manner as stipulated in Chapter 11, Section 5 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act acquire Shares within nine (9) months after the expiration of the Offer Period (including any Subsequent Offer Period) on more favourable terms than those of the Tender Offer, the Offeror must, in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 25 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, compensate the difference between the consideration paid in an acquisition on more favourable terms and the Offer Price to those shareholders that have accepted the Tender Offer (the "**Compensation Obligation**"). In such case, the Offeror will make public its Compensation Obligation without delay and will compensate the difference between the consideration on more favourable terms and the Offer Price to those shareholders that have accepted the Tender Offer (the date when the Compensation Obligation arose for those shareholders that have accepted the Tender Offer.

However, according to Chapter 11, Section 25, Subsection 5 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, the Compensation Obligation will not be triggered in case the payment of a higher price than the Offer Price is based on an arbitral award pursuant to the Finnish Companies Act, provided that the Offeror or any party referred to in Chapter 11, Section 5 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act has not offered to acquire Shares on terms that are more favourable than those of the Tender Offer before or during the arbitral proceedings.

Acceptance Procedure of the Tender Offer

The Tender Offer may be accepted by a shareholder registered during the Offer Period in the shareholders' register of Caverion maintained by Euroclear Finland Oy ("Euroclear Finland"), with the exception of Caverion and its subsidiaries. The Tender Offer must be accepted separately for each book-entry account. A shareholder of Caverion submitting an acceptance must have a cash account with a financial institution operating in Finland or abroad (see also "– *Terms of Payment and Settlement*" and "*Restrictions and Important Information*"). Shareholders may only approve the Tender Offer unconditionally and for all Shares that are held on the book-entry accounts mentioned in the acceptance at the time of the execution of the transaction with respect to the Shares of such shareholder. Acceptances submitted during the Offer Period are valid also until the expiration of an extended or discontinued extended Offer Period, if any.

A shareholder of Caverion who wishes to accept the Tender Offer must submit the properly completed and duly executed acceptance to the account operator managing the shareholder's book-entry account in accordance with the instructions and within the time period set by the account operator, which may be prior to the expiry of the Offer Period. Shareholders of Caverion must select whether they wish to elect the Cash Offer Price or the Alternative Consideration when submitting their acceptance of the Tender Offer, and the same election must apply for all Shares held on the same book-entry account. The Offeror reserves the right to reject or approve, in its sole discretion, any acceptances that have been submitted in an incorrect or incomplete manner. A shareholder may only choose to receive either the Alternative Consideration or the Cash Offer Price for all Shares held on the same book-entry account, shareholders may only tender for mixed consideration if the relevant Shares are held on separate book-entry accounts.

Due to the restrictions imposed by the Act on the Equity Savings Accounts (680/2019), the Alternative Consideration Instruments will not be available with respect to those Shares that are held on equity savings accounts. The shareholders holding Shares on equity savings accounts who have selected the Alternative Consideration will receive, instead of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, non-transferable rights to payment from the Offeror, and to demonstrate these, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded to a shareholder's equity savings account.

Each shareholder of Caverion whose acceptance of the Tender Offer has been submitted before February 13, 2023 will be deemed to have accepted the Tender Offer with the Cash Offer Price. Therefore, a shareholder of Caverion who has already submitted the acceptance of the Tender Offer before February 13, 2023 in respect of the Shares held by him/her, and who wishes to receive the Cash Offer Price, does not have to re-tender his/her Shares or take any other action as a result of the improved terms and conditions of the Tender Offer. All such shareholders will receive the Cash Offer Price if the Tender Offer is completed.

If a shareholder of Caverion has submitted the acceptance of the Tender Offer before February 13, 2023 in respect of the Shares held by him/her, and wishes to receive the Alternative Consideration instead of the Cash Offer Price, he/she must submit a valid withdrawal of his/her earlier acceptance of the Tender Offer in accordance with instructions from the account operator, and submit the properly completed and duly executed acceptance form for the Alternative Consideration. Most Finnish account operators will send a new notice regarding the Tender Offer and related instructions to those who are registered as shareholders in the shareholders' register of Caverion maintained by Euroclear Finland. Shareholders of Caverion who do not receive such instructions from their account operator or asset manager should first contact their account operator or asset manager and can subsequently contact Nordea Bank Abp ("**Nordea**") by sending an email to caverion-offer@nordea.com, where such shareholders of Caverion can receive information on submitting their acceptance of the Tender Offer. Please note, however, that Nordea will not be engaging in communications relating to the Tender Offer with shareholders located within the United States. Shareholders who are located within the United States may contact their brokers for necessary information.

Those shareholders of Caverion whose Shares are nominee-registered, and who wish to accept the Tender Offer, must effect such acceptance in accordance with the instructions given by the custodian of the nominee-registered shareholders. The Offeror will not send an acceptance form or any other documents related to the Tender Offer to these shareholders of Caverion.

If the Shares held by a shareholder are pledged or otherwise subject to restrictions that prevent or limit the acceptance, the acceptance of the Tender Offer may require the consent of the pledgee or other beneficiary of a such restriction. If so, acquiring this consent is the responsibility of the relevant shareholder of Caverion. Such consent must be delivered in writing to the account operator.

Any acceptance must be submitted in such a manner that it will be received within the Offer Period (including any extended or discontinued extended Offer Period) taking into account, however, the instructions given by the relevant account operator. In the event of a Subsequent Offer Period, the acceptance must be submitted so that it is received during the Subsequent Offer Period, subject to and in accordance with the instructions of the relevant account operator. The account operator may request the receipt of acceptances prior to the expiration of the Offer Period and/or Subsequent Offer Period. Shareholders of Caverion submit acceptances at their own risk. Any acceptance will be considered as submitted only when an account operator has actually received it. The Offeror reserves the right to reject or approve, in its sole discretion, any acceptance submitted outside the Offer Period (or any Subsequent Offer Period, as applicable) or in an incorrect or incomplete manner.

A shareholder who has validly accepted the Tender Offer in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer may not sell or otherwise transfer his/her tendered Shares. By accepting the Tender Offer, the shareholders authorise their account operator, Nordea or a party appointed by Nordea to enter into their book-entry account a sales reservation or a restriction on the right of disposal in the manner set out in "*– Technical Completion of the Tender Offer*" below after the shareholder has delivered the acceptance with respect to the Shares. Furthermore, the shareholders of Caverion that accept the Tender Offer authorise their account operator, Nordea or a party appointed by Nordea to perform necessary entries and undertake any other measures needed for the technical execution of the Tender Offer, and to sell all the Shares held by the shareholder of Caverion at the time of the execution of trades under the Tender Offer to the Offeror in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer. In connection with the completion trades of the Tender Offer or the settlement thereof, the sales reservation or the restriction on the right of disposal will be removed and the Offer Price will be transferred to the relevant shareholders of Caverion.

By accepting the Tender Offer, the accepting shareholder authorises his/her depository participant to disclose the necessary personal data, the number of his/her book-entry account and the details of the acceptance to the parties involved in the order or the execution of the order and settlement of the Shares.

Right of Withdrawal of Acceptance

Each shareholder of Caverion whose acceptance of the Tender Offer has been submitted before February 13, 2023 will be deemed to have accepted the Tender Offer with the Cash Offer Price. Therefore, each shareholder of Caverion who has submitted the acceptance of the Tender Offer before February 13, 2023, and who wishes to receive the Alternative Consideration instead of the Cash Offer Price, must submit a valid withdrawal of their earlier acceptance of the Tender Offer in accordance with instructions from their account operator. Neither the Offeror nor Nordea (in its capacity as arranger and an account operator) will charge the shareholders for withdrawing their acceptance of the Tender Offer in order to accept the Alternative Consideration in such a situation. In addition, such shareholders must submit the new acceptance form for the Alternative Consideration (see "– Acceptance Procedure of the Tender Offer" above).

An acceptance of the Tender Offer may be withdrawn by a shareholder of Caverion at any time before the expiration of the Offer Period (including any extended or discontinued extended Offer Period) until the Offeror has announced that all Conditions to Completion have been fulfilled or waived by the Offeror, that is, the Offeror has declared the Tender Offer unconditional. After such announcement, the Shares already tendered may not be withdrawn, except in the event that a third party has announced a competing public tender offer for the Shares before the execution of the completion trades of the Shares as set out under "– *Completion of the Tender Offer*" below.

A valid withdrawal of an acceptance of the Tender Offer requires that a withdrawal notification is submitted in writing to the account operator to whom the original acceptance was submitted.

For nominee-registered Shares, the shareholders must request the relevant custodian of the nominee-registered shareholder to execute a withdrawal notification.

If a shareholder of Caverion validly withdraws an acceptance of the Tender Offer, the sales reservation or the restriction on the right of disposal with respect to Shares will be removed within three (3) Finnish banking days of the receipt of a withdrawal notification.

A shareholder of Caverion who has validly withdrawn its acceptance of the Tender Offer may accept the Tender Offer again during the Offer Period (including any extended or discontinued extended Offer Period) by following the procedure set out under "*– Acceptance Procedure of the Tender Offer*" above.

A shareholder of Caverion who withdraws its acceptance of the Tender Offer is obligated to pay any fees that the account operator operating the relevant book-entry account or the custodial nominee of a nominee-registered holding may collect for the withdrawal. In accordance with the FIN-FSA Regulations and Guidelines, if a competing offer has been announced during the Offer Period and the completion of the Tender Offer has not taken place, neither the Offeror nor Nordea (in its capacity as arranger) will charge the shareholders for validly withdrawing their acceptance in such a situation.

In the event of a Subsequent Offer Period, the acceptance of the Tender Offer will be binding and cannot be withdrawn, unless otherwise provided under mandatory law.

Technical Completion of the Tender Offer

When an account operator has received the properly completed and duly executed acceptance or acceptance otherwise approved by the Offeror with respect to the Shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer, the account operator will enter a sales reservation or a restriction on the right of disposal into the relevant shareholder's book-entry account. In connection with the completion trade of the Tender Offer or the settlement thereof, the sales reservation or the restriction on the right of disposal will be removed and, in case the shareholder has elected the Cash Offer Price, the Cash Offer Price will be paid to the relevant shareholder. The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be recorded into the book-entry accounts of shareholders who have accepted the Alternative Consideration through the book-entry system of Euroclear Finland. Those shareholder in order to facilitate the settlement of the Alternative Consideration Instruments of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. To demonstrate the Deferred Payment Rights, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded in the book-entry system of Euroclear Finland on the equity savings accounts of those shareholders whose Shares are held on a Finnish equity savings account and who have accepted the Alternative Consideration.

Announcement of the Result of the Tender Offer

The preliminary result of the Tender Offer will be announced on or about the first (1st) Finnish banking day following the expiration of the Offer Period (including any extended or discontinued extended Offer Period). In connection with the announcement of such preliminary result, it will be announced whether the Tender Offer will be completed subject to the Conditions to Completion being fulfilled or waived on the date of the final result announcement and whether the Offer Period will be extended. The final result of the Tender Offer will be announced on or about the fourth (4th) Finnish banking day following the expiration of the Offer Period (including any extended or discontinued extended Offer Period) at the latest. In connection with the announcement of the

final result, the percentage of the Shares that have been validly tendered and accepted in the Tender Offer, and that have not been validly withdrawn, will be confirmed.

In the event of a Subsequent Offer Period, the Offeror will announce the initial percentage of the Shares validly tendered during the Subsequent Offer Period on or about the first (1^{st}) Finnish banking day following the expiry of the Subsequent Offer Period and the final percentage on or about the third (3^{rd}) Finnish banking day following the expiry of the Subsequent Offer Period.

Completion of the Tender Offer

The completion trades of the Tender Offer will be executed with respect to all of those Shares of Caverion that have been validly tendered, and not validly withdrawn, into the Tender Offer no later than on the fifteenth (15th) Finnish banking day following the announcement of the final result of the Tender Offer (the "**Completion Date**"). If possible, the completion trades of the Shares will be executed on Nasdaq Helsinki, provided that such execution is allowed under the rules applied to trading on Nasdaq Helsinki. Otherwise, the completion trades will be made outside Nasdaq Helsinki. The completion trades of the Shares will be settled on the Completion Date or on or about the first (1st) Finnish banking day following the Completion Date (the "**Settlement Date**"). The shareholders who have elected to receive the Alternative Consideration should note that the execution of trades under the Tender Offer consists of two transactions, that is, the settlement of Shares and the settlement of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (or record of the entry to the equity savings account representing the Deferred Payment Right, if applicable), which may result in two different Settlement Dates.

Terms of Payment and Settlement

The Cash Offer Price will be paid on the Settlement Date to each shareholder of Caverion who has validly accepted, and not validly withdrawn, the Tender Offer and elected to receive the Cash Offer Price into the management account of the shareholder's book-entry account. On the Settlement Date the Alternative Consideration Instruments will be recorded into the book-entry accounts of each shareholder of Caverion who has validly accepted, and not validly withdrawn, the Tender Offer and elected to receive the Alternative Consideration. Instead of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, the non-transferable book-entries to the equity savings accounts representing the Deferred Payment Rights will be recorded on the Settlement Date to each shareholder of Caverion holding Shares on a Finnish equity savings account who has validly accepted, and not validly withdrawn, the Tender Offer and elected to receive the Alternative Consideration with respect to these Shares. The redemption price of the Alternative Consideration Instruments will be paid in cash on the Redemption Date to each holder of the Alternative Consideration Instruments into the management account of the holder's book-entry account. The Deferred Payment Rights will be settled in cash on the Redemption Date into the Finnish equity savings account of each holder of the Deferred Payment Rights. If the management account of a shareholder of Caverion or a holder of the Alternative Consideration Instrument or Deferred Payment Right is with a different financial institution than the applicable book-entry account, the applicable cash payment will be paid into such cash account approximately two (2) Finnish banking days later in accordance with the schedule for payment transactions between financial institutions. In any case, the Offer Price will not be paid to a bank account situated in Australia, Canada, the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China, Japan, New Zealand or South Africa or any other jurisdiction where the Tender Offer is not being made (see section "Restrictions and Important Information").

In the event of a Subsequent Offer Period, the Offeror will in connection with the announcement thereof announce the terms of payment and settlement for the Shares tendered during the Subsequent Offer Period. The completion trades with respect to Shares validly tendered and accepted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer during the Subsequent Offer Period will, however, be executed within not more than two (2) week intervals.

The Offeror reserves the right to postpone the payment of the Cash Offer Price (and/or the payment of the redemption amount of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights on the Redemption Date) or the delivery of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights if such payment or delivery, respectively, is prevented or suspended due to a force majeure event, but will immediately effect such payment or delivery, respectively, once the force majeure event preventing or suspending such payment or delivery, respectively, is resolved.

If all the Conditions to Completion are not met and the Offeror does not waive such conditions or extend the Offer Period, the Tender Offer will expire, and no consideration will be paid for the tendered Shares.

Transfer of Ownership

Title to the Shares in respect of which the Tender Offer has been validly accepted, and not validly withdrawn, will pass to the Offeror on the Settlement Date against the payment of the Cash Offer Price or against the delivery of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or against the record of the book-entry representing the Deferred Payment Rights to the equity savings account by the Offeror to the tendering shareholder. In the event of a Subsequent Offer Period will pass to the Offeror on the relevant settlement date against the payment of the Cash Offer Price or against the delivery of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or the relevant settlement date against the payment of the Cash Offer Price or against the delivery of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or against the record of the book-entry representing the Deferred Payment Rights to the equity savings account by the Offeror to the tendering shareholder.

Transfer Tax and Other Payments

The Offeror will pay any transfer tax that may be charged in Finland in connection with the sale of the Shares pursuant to the Tender Offer.

Fees charged by account operators, asset managers, nominees or any other person for the receival, transfer or custody of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, or release of collateral or the revoking of any other possible restrictions preventing the sale of the Shares, will be borne by each relevant shareholder of Caverion. Each shareholder of Caverion is liable for any fees that relate to a withdrawal of an acceptance made by such shareholder. Neither the Offeror nor Nordea (in its capacity as arranger and an account operator) will charge the shareholders for validly withdrawing their acceptance in a situation where a shareholder of Caverion has submitted his/her acceptance concerning the Tender Offer before February 13, 2023, and who has validly withdrawn its earlier acceptance of the Tender Offer in order to receive the Alternative Consideration instead of the Cash Offer Price.

The Offeror is liable for any other customary costs caused by the registration of entries in the book-entry system required by the Tender Offer, the execution of trades pertaining to the Shares pursuant to the Tender Offer and the payment of the Offer Price.

The sale of Shares pursuant to the Tender Offer by a shareholder may be a taxable transaction for the respective shareholder under applicable tax laws, including those of the country of residency of the shareholder. Any tax liability arising to a shareholder from the sale of Shares pursuant to the Tender Offer will be borne by such shareholder. Each shareholder is urged to consult with an independent professional adviser regarding the tax consequences of accepting the Tender Offer.

Other Matters

This Tender Offer Document and the Tender Offer are governed by Finnish law. Any disputes arising out of or in connection with the Tender Offer will be settled by a court of competent jurisdiction in Finland.

The Offeror reserves the right to amend the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 15 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act. Should the FIN-FSA issue an order regarding an extension of the Offer Period, the Offeror reserves the right to decide upon the withdrawal of the Tender Offer in accordance with Chapter 11, Section 12 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act.

Should a competing tender offer be published by a third party during the Offer Period, the Offeror reserves the right, as stipulated in Chapter 11, Section 17 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act, to (i) decide upon an extension of the Offer Period; (ii) decide upon an amendment of the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer; and (iii) decide, during the Offer Period, but before the expiration of the competing offer, to let the Tender Offer lapse. The Offeror will decide on all other matters related to the Tender Offer, subject to applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of the Combination Agreement.

Other Information

Nordea acts as arranger outside the United States in relation to the Tender Offer, which means that it performs certain administrative services relating to the Tender Offer. This does not mean that a person who accepts the Tender Offer (the "**Participant**") will be regarded as a customer of Nordea as a result of such acceptance. A Participant will be regarded as a customer only if Nordea has provided advice to the Participant or has otherwise contacted the Participant personally regarding the Tender Offer. If the Participant is not regarded as a customer, the investor protection rules under the Finnish Act on Investment Services (747/2012, as amended) will not apply to the acceptance. This means, among other things, that neither the so-called customer categorization nor the so-called appropriateness test will be performed with respect to the Tender Offer. Each Participant is therefore responsible for ensuring that it has sufficient experience and knowledge to understand the risks associated with the Tender Offer.

Important Information regarding NID and LEI

According to Directive 2014/65/ EU on markets in financial instruments (MiFID II), all investors must have a global identification code from 3 January 2018, in order to carry out a securities transaction. These requirements require legal entities to apply for registration of a Legal Entity Identifier ("LEI") code, and natural persons need to state their NID (National ID or National Client Identifier) when accepting the Tender Offer. Each person's legal status determines whether a LEI code or NID number is required and the book-entry account operator may be prevented from performing the transaction to any person if LEI or NID number is not provided. Legal persons who need to obtain a LEI code can contact the relevant authority or one of the suppliers available on the market. Those who intend to accept the Tender Offer are encouraged to apply for registration of a LEI code (legal persons) or to acquire their NID number (natural persons) well in advance, as this information is required in the acceptance at the time of submission.

Information about Processing of Personal Data

Shareholders who accept the Tender Offer will submit personal data, such as name, address and social security number, to Nordea, which is the controller for the processing. Personal data provided to Nordea will be processed in data systems to the extent required to administer the Tender Offer. Personal data obtained from sources other than the customer may also be processed. Personal data may also be processed in the data systems of companies with which Nordea cooperates and it may be disclosed to the Offeror and the members of the Consortium to the extent necessary for administering the Tender Offer. Address details may be obtained by Nordea through an automatic procedure executed by Euroclear Finland. Additional information on processing of personal data by Nordea, including details on how to exercise data subjects' rights, may be found at https://www.nordea.fi/en/personal/get-help/your-rights-to-personal-data.html and www.nordea.com/en/generalterms-and-policies/privacy-policy.html.

PRESENTATION OF THE OFFEROR

The section "Presentation of the Offeror" shall be amended by adding the following subsections:

History

The Offeror was incorporated on September 20, 2022 for the purposes of the Tender Offer, and it has never conducted and does not currently conduct any other business activities. In accordance with section 2 of the Offeror's Articles of Association, the objective of the Offeror is to own and administer shares, participations, securities and other assets, to supervise the activities of its subsidiaries and other operating units, and to plan and carry out financially appropriate new investments, and to provide management services to the group companies.

Ownership Structure

As at the date of this Supplement Document, the Offeror is indirectly wholly-owned by North Luxco. North Luxco was incorporated to be the holding company in the acquisition structure and is currently wholly-owned by Bain Luxco. The Offeror forms part of the acquisition structure for the purposes of the Tender Offer, and its dependent upon its direct and indirect parent companies in relation to its financing. After the completion of the Tender Offer, it is expected that the Offeror would become a parent company of Caverion.

Legal Proceedings

In the 12 months preceding the date of this Supplement Document, the Offeror has not been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings which may have, or have had in the recent past, a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of the Offeror, nor is the Offeror aware of any pending proceedings or the threat thereof.

Material Contracts

The Offeror has received equity commitments given by Bain Capital Funds, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis to finance the Tender Offer, which have been amended on January 24, 2023 to include also financing for the redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and the payment of the Deferred Payment Rights by the Offeror when they fall due. In addition, the Offeror has secured acquisition financing in the form of senior secured, covenant-lite debt commitments. See "Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer".

The Offeror and Caverion entered on November 3, 2022 into the Combination Agreement pursuant to which the Offeror made the Tender Offer. On January 24, 2023, the Offeror and Caverion entered into an amendment to the Combination Agreement, according to which the Offeror has, among other things, agreed to improve the consideration offered for each Share in the Tender Offer. See "Summary of the Combination Agreement".

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

This section "Financial and Other Information" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

The financial information presented below has been derived from the Offeror's unaudited financial statements for the financial period of September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022, prepared in accordance with FAS. The Offeror was incorporated on September 20, 2022 for the purposes of the Tender Offer, and it has never conducted and does not currently conduct any other business activities. The financing commitments addressed to the Offeror for the purposes of funding the Tender Offer have been described under section "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*".

The Offeror's financial statements for the financial period of September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022 have been included in this Supplement Document as Annex H. The financial statements included in this Supplement Document are unaudited, and the Offeror will supplement the Tender Offer Document with the audited financial statements and an auditor's report when the audit has been completed.

INCOME STATEMENT (EUR thousand)	September 20, 2022 – December 31, 2022 (unaudited)
Other operating expenses	-17.5
Operating profit (-loss)	-17.5
Profit (loss) before appropriations and taxes	-17.5
Profit (loss) for the financial year	-17.5

BALANCE SHEET	As at December 31, 2022
(EUR thousand)	(unaudited)
Assets	
Current assets	
Short term debtors	
Receivables from associated companies	20.0
Current assets total	20.0
Assets total	20.0
Equity and liabilities	
Capital and reserves	
Invested unrestricted equity fund	20.0
Profit (loss) for the financial year	-17.5
Capital and reserve total	2.5
Liabilities	
Short term liabilities	
Trade creditors	17.5
Other debtors	0
Short term liabilities total	17.5
Equity and liabilities total	20.0

Recent Developments

There have not been any significant changes in the Offeror's financial performance or financial position between December 31, 2022 and the date of this Supplement Document. Since December 31, 2022, there has been no material adverse change in the prospects of the Offeror.

The Tender Offer was announced by the Offeror on November 3, 2022 with an offer price of EUR 7.00 in cash for each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer. On January 11, 2023, the Offeror announced that it will extend the Offer Period in order to receive the necessary regulatory approvals. See "*Restrictions and Important Information – Certain Key Dates*". In addition, the Offeror announced that the minimum acceptance threshold under the equity and debt commitments received from Goldman Sachs Asset Management has been amended and that the applicable exemption under the Exchange Act was changed. The Offeror supplemented the Tender Offer Document to reflect the extension of the offer period and updated information concerning financing of the Tender

Offer as well as the applicable exemption under the Exchange Act and published the supplement document on January 13, 2023.

Caverion announced on January 10, 2023, that Crayfish Bidco Oy, a Finnish company controlled by Triton Fund V, has announced a voluntary public cash tender offer pursuant to which Crayfish Bidco Oy proposes to acquire all issued and outstanding shares in Caverion at an offer price of EUR 8.00 per share. According to Caverion's stock exchange release, the tender offer by Crayfish Bidco Oy is subject to certain conditions, including the tender offer having been validly accepted with respect to shares representing, together with any other shares otherwise acquired by Crayfish Bidco Oy prior to or during the offer period, more than ninety (90) percent of the outstanding shares and voting rights in Caverion, and the receipt by Crayfish Bidco Oy of all necessary regulatory approvals. Caverion's stock exchange release of January 10, 2023 is attached as Appendix D to the Tender Offer Document and the Offeror's stock exchange release concerning, inter alia, its views on the competing offer of January 11, 2023, is attached as Appendix E to the Tender Offer Document.

On January 24, 2023, the Offeror announced that the Offeror and Caverion had entered into an amendment to the Combination Agreement, according to which the Offeror has, among other things, agreed to improve the consideration offered for each Share in the Tender Offer by offering the Alternative Consideration or the Cash Offer Price for each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer. In connection therewith, the Offeror agreed certain amendments to its financing, as described under section "*Background and Objectives – Financing of the Tender Offer*".

The Offeror was incorporated for the purpose of implementing the Tender Offer. The completion of the Tender Offer or the Alternative Consideration Offering is not in itself expected to have any significant effect on the business operations, profit and financial position of the Offeror.

The Offeror's intention is to acquire all the Shares in Caverion. As at the date of this Supplement Document, Caverion has 136,472,645 outstanding Shares.

Share Capital

The Offeror has a single series of shares, and each share entitles its holder to one vote in the General Meeting of Shareholders. The shares have no nominal value. The Offeror's registered share capital is zero and the Offeror has 1,000 shares. The Offeror has one shareholder, North Holdings 2 Oy. See "*Presentation of the Offeror – Ownership Structure*".

Board of Directors

Under the Finnish Companies Act and the Offeror's Articles of Association, the Offeror's governance and management are distributed between the shareholders, Board of Directors and the CEO, if any. As at the date of this Supplement Document, the Offeror does not have a CEO. The members of the Board of Directors are Ivano Sessa (the Chairman), Nicholas Bendt, Klaus Cawén, Halvor Meyer Horten and Alexandre Labignette.

The address of the members of the Board of Directors is c/o Roschier, Attorneys Ltd., Kasarmikatu 21 A, FI-00130 Helsinki, Finland.

The following table sets forth the members of the Offeror's Board of Directors as at the date of this Supplement Document and the principal activities performed by them outside of the Offeror to the extent these are significant with respect to the Offeror.

Name	Background
Sessa Ivano Born 2 August 1977 B.Sc. (BBA) Chairman of the Board	Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP., Partner
Bendt Nicholas Born 25 August 1990 B.Sc. (BBM) Member of the Board	Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP., Principal (Industrial & Energy Vertical)

Cawén Klaus Born 21 May 1957 LL.M. Member of the Board	Executive Advisor to Security Trading Oy
Horten Halvor Meyer Born 24 September 1981 M.Sc. (Econ) Member of the Board	Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP., Partner
Labignette Alexandre Born 11 March 1974 LL.M. Member of the Board	Fennogens Investments S.A., Member of the Board Corbis S.A., Member of the Board Topsin Investments S.A., Member of the Board

Conflicts of Interest

Provisions regarding the conflicts of interest of the management of a Finnish company are set forth in the Finnish Companies Act. Pursuant to Chapter 6, Section 4 of the Finnish Companies Act, a member of the Board of Directors may not participate in the handling of a contract between himself or herself and the company. Further, a member of the Board of Directors shall likewise be disqualified from the consideration of a matter pertaining to a contract between the company and a third party, if the member is to derive an essential benefit in the matter and that benefit may be contrary to the interests of the company. This provision also applies to any other legal act, legal proceeding or other similar matter.

The members of the Offeror's Board of Directors do not have any conflicts of interest between their duties relating to the Offeror and their private interests and/or their other duties.

TAXATION

This section "Taxation" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document.

The following summary is based on the Offeror's interpretation of the tax laws of Finland as in effect as at the date of this Supplement Document, and is subject to changes in Finnish law, including changes that could have a retroactive effect on taxation. The following summary is not exhaustive and does not address special tax consequences, among other things applicable to shareholders that own Shares through an equity savings account, nor take into account or deal with the tax laws of any country other than Finland. The tax legislation of a shareholder's Member State and the Offeror's country of incorporation, i.e. Finland, may have an impact on the income received from the Shares. The Offeror is not aware of any published case law or tax practice concerning exactly similar Alternative Consideration used as consideration in a public tender offer. Prospective investors are thus advised to consult their own professional tax advisors as to the Finnish or foreign tax consequences of the sale of the Shares against the Alternative Consideration, which in the absence of precedents may eventually be different from the interpretations of the Offeror presented in this Supplement Document.

Sale of Shares against the Alternative Consideration

Resident Individuals

Any Finnish individuals should be taxed as having disposed of the Shares on the completion date, triggering taxation on that date regardless of when they receive the cash proceeds based on the Alternative Consideration.

Capital gain or loss arising from the sale of the Shares is taxable as capital gain, or as capital loss for resident individuals. Capital gains are currently taxed at a rate of 30 percent. However, should the overall capital income exceed EUR 30,000 during the calendar year, the tax rate for the exceeding amount is 34 percent.

Any capital gain or loss is as a starting point calculated by deducting from the nominal value of the Alternative Consideration the original acquisition cost of the Shares and expenses related to the sale. Alternatively, individuals may, instead of deducting the actual acquisition costs, choose to apply a so-called presumptive acquisition cost, which is equal to 20 percent of the sales price or, if the Shares have been held for at least 10 years, 40 percent of the sales price. If the presumptive acquisition cost is used instead of the actual acquisition cost, any expenses related to the sale are deemed to be included therein and, therefore, may not be separately deducted from the sales price.

A capital loss arising from the sale Shares is deductible primarily from the resident individual's capital gains and secondarily from other capital income arising in the same year and during the following five calendar years.

If the instrument issued for the Alternative Consideration is sold by the resident individual before its maturity date, the transfer should be taxed according to the rules on capital gains taxation (see above). The tax acquisition cost of the Alternative Consideration Instruments should correspond to their nominal value.

Finnish Limited Liability Companies

Any Finnish limited liability companies should be taxed as having disposed of the Shares on the completion date, triggering taxation on that date regardless of when they receive the cash proceeds based on the Alternative Consideration.

Capital gain arising from the sale of Shares is as a starting point calculated by deducting from the nominal value of the Alternative Consideration the original acquisition cost of the Shares and expenses related to the sale. It is generally taxable income of a limited liability company at the corporate income tax rate of 20 percent. The taxation of disposal of the Shares and deductibility of any capital loss may vary according to the asset type for which the Shares qualify in the taxation of the shareholder.

If the instrument issued for the Alternative Consideration is sold by the Finnish limited liability company before its maturity date, the transfer should be taxed according to the rules on capital gains taxation (see above). The tax acquisition cost of the Alternative Consideration Instruments should correspond to their nominal value.

Non-residents

Non-residents are generally not liable to tax in Finland on capital gains realized on the sale of shares in a Finnish company, unless the non-resident taxpayer is deemed to have a permanent establishment in Finland according to the Finnish Income Tax Act and the applicable tax treaty, and the shares are considered as assets of that permanent establishment.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS

This section "*Terms and Conditions of the Alternative Consideration Instruments*" shall be added in the Tender Offer Document as Annex F.

Terms and conditions

for a maximum of EUR 845.2 million alternative consideration instrument (the "Alternative Consideration Instruments")

by North Holdings 3 Oy (the "Issuer")

Background and purpose of the issuance

On November 3, 2022, the Issuer announced a voluntary public tender offer for all the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion Corporation ("Caverion") (the "Tender Offer"). North Lux Topco SARL ("North Luxco"), which is a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Grand Duchy of Luxembourg indirectly wholly owns the Issuer. North Luxco was incorporated to be the holding company in the acquisition structure and is currently wholly owned by North (BC) Lux Holdco SARL ("Bain Luxco") (a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP and/or its affiliates). Bain Luxco, Security Trading Oy, Fennogens Investments S.A. and Corbis S.A. form a consortium (the "Consortium") for the purposes of the Tender Offer. Further information concerning the Tender Offer and the Issuer has been presented in the offer document concerning the Tender Offer.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are offered as an alternative consideration in the Tender Offer to the cash consideration payable to the shareholders of Caverion in connection with the completion trades of the Tender Offer. The intention is to issue and grant Alternative Consideration Instruments in connection with the Tender Offer completion trades to such shareholders of Caverion who have validly accepted the Tender Offer during the offer period (including any extended offer period and subsequent offer period) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer, and who have in connection with such acceptance of the Tender Offer opted to receive Alternative Consideration Instruments instead of the EUR 8,00 per share cash consideration. One Caverion share entitles its holder to one Alternative Consideration Instrument. Bain Capital Europe Fund VI, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis have executed equity commitment letters addressed to the Issuer on customary terms for financing the redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments. These terms and conditions shall apply to the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

Information on the Issuer

Name of Issuer:	North Holdings 3 Oy
Domicile:	Helsinki
Address:	c/o Roschier Asianajotoimisto Oy
	Kasarmikatu 21 A
	FI-00130 Helsinki
	Finland
Business ID:	3313575-3
Legal Entity Identifier:	7437009B9MUZV15RTK32

Issuer Agent

Nordea Bank Abp acts as the Issuer Agent (the "Issuer Agent") for the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments as required by the Rules of Euroclear Finland Ltd ("Euroclear Finland").

Information on the securities

Name of security:	Alternative Consideration Instrument
ISIN:	[To be allocated prior to the issue date]
Currency:	Euro (EUR)

Type of security

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued as book-entry form instruments in Euroclear Finland's Infinity system and no physical certificates will be issued. The Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and Clearing Operations, Act on Book-Entry Accounts as well as the rules and CEO's decisions of Euroclear Finland will be applied to the handling of the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

Maximum aggregate principal amount of the securities

The maximum aggregate principal amount of the Alternative Consideration Instruments is EUR 845,171,524. Alternative Consideration Instruments may be issued in one or more tranches in connection with the settlement trades of the Tender Offer (including in connection with settlement trades for any subsequent offer period) and the final aggregate principal amount of the Alternative Consideration Instruments will be confirmed after the last settlement trades in respect of the Tender Offer have been completed.

Nominal principal amount, book-entry unit and interest

The nominal principal amount and book-entry unit of each Alternative Consideration Instrument is EUR 8.50 unless the nominal principal amount and book-entry unit of an Alternative Consideration Instrument is adjusted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer prior to the issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instrument. The Alternative Consideration Instrument shall not accrue any interest.

Issue date and redemption date

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued on the date(s) of the completion trades of the Tender Offer and they will mature on the date falling nine (9) months after the date of first issuance of the Alternative Consideration Instruments (the "**Redemption Date**"). The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be redeemed at their full nominal amount on the Redemption Date. If the Redemption Date falls on a date which is not a Business Day, the Redemption Date will be postponed to the next following Business Day. For the purposes of these terms and conditions, "**Business Day**" shall mean a day on which the European TARGET2 System is open for the settlement of payment orders.

Status and security

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are direct, unsubordinated, unsecured and unguaranteed obligations of the Issuer ranking *pari passu* and without any preference among them.

Transferability

The Alternative Consideration Instruments are transferable after they have been registered into the respective book-entry account of the relevant holder of such Alternative Consideration Instruments. No application has been or will be made by the Issuer to have the Alternative Consideration Instruments admitted to trading on any trading venue.

Representation of holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments

No representative has or will be appointed for the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments.

Prepayment

Holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments are not entitled to demand prepayment or repayment of their Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the Redemption Date. The Issuer is entitled to redeem all (but not only some) of the Alternative Consideration Instruments prior to the Redemption Date at their nominal principal amount. Such redemption shall be made by the Issuer giving not less than five Business Days' notice to the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments by a press release.

Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time in connection with the completion and settlement of potential subsequent offer period(s) of the Tender Offer (if any), without the consent of or notice to the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, create and issue further Alternative Consideration Instruments to which these same terms and conditions as the Alternative Consideration Instruments apply in all respects.

Taxation

All payments in respect of the Alternative Consideration Instruments by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be made without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature ("**Taxes**") imposed or levied by or on behalf of state of Finland or any public entity of Finland having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of the Taxes is required by law. In such case, the Issuer shall make such payment after such withholding or deduction has been made and shall account to the relevant authorities for the amount so required to be withheld or deducted. The Issuer will not be obligated to make any additional payments to the holders of Alternative Consideration Instruments in respect of such withholding or deduction.

Changes

The Board of Directors of the Issuer shall decide on the terms and measures in connection with the granting or handling of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, or any technical changes to be made to these terms and conditions that are not detrimental to the interest of the holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments in any material respect.

Other terms and conditions

Notwithstanding any confidentiality obligations, the Issuer has the right to receive information on the list of holders of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and their contact details from Euroclear Finland.

Each holder of the Alternative Consideration Instruments agrees, with respect to the Alternative Consideration Instruments it holds, not to exercise, and hereby waives in advance, its right in accordance with the Finnish Companies Act (624/2006, as amended) to object to any merger or demerger.

Force Majeure

Neither the Issuer nor the Issuer Agent shall be responsible for any damage resulting from a force majeure or equivalent reason which makes it unduly difficult for the Issuer or Issuer Agent to take any action which is required to comply with these terms and conditions.

Applicable law and jurisdiction

The Alternative Consideration Instruments shall be governed by Finnish law.

Any disputes related to the Alternative Consideration Instruments shall be settled in the District Court where the Issuer is domiciled.

Contact details of Issuer

North Holdings 3 Oy Helsinki c/o Roschier Asianajotoimisto Oy Kasarmikatu 21 A, 00130 Helsinki

UPDATED STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CAVERION



Updated statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion Corporation regarding the recommended voluntary public tender offer by North Holdings 3

Caverion Corporation

Tender Offer

9 February 2023 at 5.00 p.m. EET

Updated statement of the Board of Directors of Caverion Corporation regarding the recommended voluntary public tender offer by North Holdings 3

NOT FOR RELEASE, PUBLICATION OR DISTRIBUTION, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN OR INTO AUSTRALIA, CANADA, HONG KONG, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA OR IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE TENDER OFFER WOULD BE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

North Holdings 3 Oy (the "Offeror") and Caverion Corporation ("Caverion" or the "Company") announced on November 3, 2022 that they have entered into a combination agreement (the "Combination Agreement"), pursuant to which the Offeror has made a recommended voluntary public cash tender offer to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion (the "Initial Tender Offer") that are not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries (the "Shares").

Crayfish Bidco Oy ("**Crayfish**") announced on January 10, 2023 a voluntary public cash tender offer for all the Shares in Caverion, where Crayfish announced that it will offer to acquire all the issued and outstanding Shares in Caverion that are not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries with a cash consideration of EUR 8.00 for each Share validly tendered in the tender offer added with an interest of 3.00 percent per annum (the "**Interest Component**"), which will accrue, if Crayfish has not declared the tender offer unconditional by 4:00 p.m. EEST on 30 June 2023 (the "**Competing Offer**").

As a result of the Competing Offer, the Offeror approached the Company's Board of Directors (the "**Board of Directors**") with a proposal to improve the Initial Tender Offer by, among other things, increasing the immediate cash consideration for each Share to EUR 8.00 (the "**Improved Cash Price**"), while also offering the shareholders of Caverion the possibility to choose instead of the immediate cash consideration a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 for each Share payable in nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer (the "**Alternative Consideration**") implemented through the issuance of a debt instrument with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50 (the "**Alternative Consideration Instrument**") as well as lowering the minimum acceptance threshold of the Tender Offer from more than 90 percent to more than 66 2/3 percent of all Shares (the "**Improved Tender Offer**") (the Initial Tender Offer and Improved Tender Offer together the "**Tender Offer**"). The Offeror and Caverion announced on January 24, 2023 that they have due to the Improved Tender Offer entered into an amendment to the Combination Agreement (the "**Amendment Agreement**") reflecting the changes to the Tender Offer.

With the agreed changes the Improved Cash Price offered in the Tender Offer is equal to the EUR 8.00 cash consideration per Share offered in the Competing Offer (as calculated without the Interest Component included in the Competing Offer). The Alternative Consideration represents a premium of 6.25 percent compared to the cash consideration of EUR 8.00 offered in the Competing Offer (as calculated without the Interest Component included in the Competing Offer). The Alternative Consideration represents a premium of 6.25 percent compared to the cash consideration of EUR 8.00 offered in the Competing Offer (as calculated without the Interest Component included in the Competing Offer). The minimum acceptance threshold of more than 66 2/3 percent of all Shares in the Tender Offer is lower than the minimum acceptance threshold of more than 90 percent of all Shares in the Competing Offer and therefore provides increased deal certainty compared to the Competing Offer. As announced on January 26, 2023, by Caverion and the Offeror, the Offeror has received all necessary regulatory approvals required for the completion of the Tender Offer, whereas in comparison the Competing Offer is still conditional upon

receipt of multiple regulatory approvals, including but not limited to approvals required under applicable foreign direct investment laws and merger control clearances required under applicable competition laws or other laws in any jurisdiction for the completion of the Competing Offer. The Offeror currently estimates that the completion trades in the Tender Offer, and the payment of the Improved Cash Price for the shareholders who elect this option, would take place in the second half of March, 2023 and that the cash redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments would take place in the second half of December, 2023.

The Board of Directors, pursuant to what is provided herein, unanimously recommends that the shareholders of the Company accept the Tender Offer, and has decided to issue the statement below regarding the Tender Offer as required by Chapter 11, Section 13 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act (756/2012, as amended). In its assessment and recommendation the Board of Directors has taken into consideration (i) the Competing Offer, including the offer price that Crayfish announced on January 10, 2023, as well as the stock exchange releases published by Crayfish on January 25, 2023 and January 30, 2023, pursuant to which Crayfish evaluates the Improved Tender Offer made by the Offeror and continues to evaluate its alternatives as well as informed changing the timetable for the Competing Offer and (ii) the opportunities for, among other matters, Caverion to develop its business as an independent company for the benefit of Caverion and its shareholders.

Improved Tender Offer in Brief

The Offeror, a private limited liability company incorporated and existing under the laws of Finland, that will be indirectly owned by a consortium led by North (BC) Lux Holdco SARL ("**Bain Luxco**") (a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP, and/or its affiliates (together "**Bain Capital**" and such funds being the "**Bain Capital Funds**")) and further including Security Trading Oy ("**Security Trading**"), Fennogens Investments S.A. ("**Fennogens**") and Corbis S.A. ("**Corbis**") (together the "**Consortium**") and Caverion, have on November 3, 2022 entered int a Combination Agreement, which has, as announced, been amended with an Amendment Agreement entered into on January 24, 2023.

In addition, (i) certain funds managed by affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) certain affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("**Goldman Sachs Asset Management**") are providing subordinated debt financing in connection with the Tender Offer to the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy. In connection with the subordinated debt financing arrangement, Goldman Sachs Asset Management may also make an equity co-investment alongside the Consortium members in North Lux Topco SARL.

As at the date of this statement, Caverion has 138,920,092 issued shares, of which 136,472,645 are outstanding Shares and 2,447,447 are held in treasury. As at the date of this statement, Security Trading together with Antti Herlin directly and indirectly holds 21,054,392 Shares, representing approximately 15.43 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion, Fennogens directly holds 14,169,850 Shares, representing approximately 10.38 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion and Corbis directly holds 1,739,412 Shares, representing approximately 1.27 percent of all outstanding Shares and votes in Caverion. As at the date of this statement, neither the Offeror nor Bain Luxco hold any Shares.

The Offeror, Bain Luxco and Goldman Sachs Asset Management, each respectively, have reserved the right to acquire Shares before, during and/or after the offer period (including any extension thereof and any subsequent offer period) in public trading on Nasdaq Helsinki or otherwise.

The Tender Offer has been made in accordance with the terms and conditions included in the tender offer document approved by the Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority published by the Offeror on November 24, 2022 (the "**Tender Offer Document**"). The offeror has supplemented the Tender Offer Document with amendments to the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer on January 13, 2022 and will further supplement the Tender Offer Document with detailed information on the terms and conditions of the Improved Tender Offer, including the Alternative Consideration Instruments, as well as additional information on the Offeror, and will publish the supplement to the Tender Offer Document (the "**Supplement**") once it has been approved by the Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority. The Offeror is currently expecting that the Supplement to the Tender Offer Document will be published in early February, 2023.

The Offer Price

The Improved Tender Offer allows the shareholders of Caverion to choose either (i) the Alternative Consideration, which is based on a debt instrument entitling to a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 for each Share in nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Improved Tender Offer, or (ii) an immediate Improved Cash Price of EUR 8.00 upon completion of the Improved Tender Offer for

each Share validly tendered in the Tender Offer (the Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration jointly, the "**Offer Price**"), subject to any adjustments as set out below. The shareholders holding Shares on the Finnish equity savings accounts have the possibility to elect a deferred payment right of EUR 8.50 per Share to be paid in cash nine (9) months from the date of the first completion trades in the Tender Offer (the "**Deferred Payment Right**"). The Deferred Payment Rights are non-transferable rights to payment from the Offeror, and to demonstrate these in the book-entry system, the book-entries named as other rights will be recorded to a shareholder's equity savings account.

A shareholder may only choose to receive either the Alternative Consideration or the Improved Cash Price for all Shares held on the same book-entry account, and, consequently, shareholders may only tender for mixed consideration if Shares are held on separate book-entry accounts. The shareholders may choose the Alternative Consideration only after the Supplement with detailed information on the terms and conditions of the Improved Tender Offer, including the Alternative Consideration Instruments, as well as additional information on the Offeror, has been published.

The Alternative Consideration will be implemented by the Offeror by issuing Alternative Consideration Instruments with the nominal principal amount of EUR 8.50, which will be redeemed at their full nominal amount upon their maturity nine (9) months from their issuance. Shareholders choosing the Alternative Consideration will be issued one Alternative Consideration Instrument for each Share tendered in the Tender Offer in connection with the completion trades of the Tender Offer. The equity commitments given to the Offeror by Bain Capital Funds and the members of the Consortium to finance the Tender Offer have been amended to include financing also of the Alternative Consideration Instruments, so that their cash redemption by the Offeror will be backed by the funding commitments from the Consortium in the same way as funding for the Improved Cash Price.

The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be issued on the date of the completion trades of the Tender Offer and they will mature nine (9) months from their issue date. The Alternative Consideration Instruments will be redeemed at their full nominal amount of EUR 8.50 on the date of maturity.

The Improved Cash Price is equal to the cash consideration of EUR 8.00 per Share offered in the Competing Offer (as calculated without the Interest Component included in the Competing Offer). The Improved Cash Price represents a premium of approximately:

- 70.58 percent compared to the closing price of EUR 4.69 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki on November 2, 2022, the last trading day immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer,
- 69.85 percent compared to the volume-weighted average price of EUR 4.71 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki during the three-month period prior to and up to November 2, 2022; and
- 71.31 percent compared to the volume-weighted average price of EUR 4.67 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki during the six-month period prior to and up to November 2, 2022.

The Alternative Consideration represents a premium of 6.25 percent compared to the cash consideration of EUR 8.00 per Share offered in the Competing Offer (as calculated without the Interest Component included in the Competing Offer). The Alternative Consideration represents a premium of approximately:

- 81.24 percent compared to the closing price of EUR 4.69 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki on November 2, 2022, the last trading day immediately preceding the announcement of the Tender Offer,
- 80.47 percent compared to the volume-weighted average price of EUR 4.71 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki during the three-month period prior to and up to November 2, 2022; and
- 82.01 percent compared to the volume-weighted average price of EUR 4.67 of the Share on Nasdaq Helsinki during the six-month period prior to and up to November 2, 2022

Each of Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü, which are either members of the Consortium or related parties to the Consortium members, have agreed to waive part of the EUR 1.00 increase to the Offer Price and to sell all their Shares to the Offeror for a cash consideration of EUR 7.50 per Share in, or in connection with the completion of, the Improved Tender Offer.

The Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration have been determined based on 136,472,645 issued and outstanding Shares. Should the Company increase the number of Shares that are issued and outstanding on the date hereof as a result of a new share issue, reclassification, stock split (including a *reverse split*) or any other similar transaction with dilutive effect, or should the Company distribute a dividend or otherwise distribute funds or any other assets to its shareholders, or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to any of the settlements of the completion trades (whether after the expiry of the offer period or any subsequent offer period), resulting in the distribution of funds not being payable to the Offeror, the Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration

payable by the Offeror shall be reduced accordingly on a euro-for-euro basis. However, each of the Alternative Consideration Instruments or Deferred Payment Rights are not subject to any adjustments after such an Alternative Consideration Instrument has been delivered or a Deferred Payment Right has been recorded to the shareholder but, instead, the adjustments will occur only if the distribution of funds or other corporate event entitling to the adjustment or if a record date with respect to any of the foregoing occurs prior to the settlement of relevant completion trades of the Tender Offer.

Support by certain shareholders

Elo Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Mandatum Life Insurance Company Limited and Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, together representing approximately 15.4 percent of all Shares and votes in Caverion, as well as Antti Herlin, Hisra Consulting and Finance Oy and Autumn Spirit Oü, which are not part of the Consortium but are related parties to the Consortium members and together represent approximately 0.5 percent of all Shares and votes in Caverion, have renewed their irrevocable undertakings to accept the Improved Tender Offer, and Veritas Pension Insurance Company Ltd., which holds approximately 0.6 percent of all Shares and votes in Caverion, has given an irrevocable undertaking to accept the Tender Offer. These irrevocable undertakings may be terminated only in the event that the Offeror withdraws or does not complete the Tender Offer, or in the event that a competing offer is announced by a third party with a consideration of at least EUR 8.95 per Share and the Offeror does not match or exceed the consideration offered in such competing offer within a certain period of time.

Together with the Shares directly held by the Consortium members, the irrevocable undertakings represent approximately 43.0 percent of all the Shares and votes in Caverion in aggregate.

The Offer Period

The offer period for the Tender Offer (the "**Offer Period**") commenced on November 24, 2022 and will expire on February 28, 2023. The Offeror has reserved the right to extend the Offer Period in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The Offeror currently estimates that the completion trades in the Tender Offer, and the payment of the Improved Cash Price for the shareholders who elect this option, would take place in the second half of March, 2023 and that the cash redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments would take place in the second half of December, 2023.

Until the supplement to the Tender Offer Document has been published, shareholders of Caverion tendering their Shares to the Tender Offer may only choose the cash consideration. Shareholders will be able to choose the Alternative Consideration when tendering into the Improved Tender Offer only after the Supplement to the Tender Offer Document has been published. In connection with the publication of the supplement to the Tender Offer Document, the Offeror will also publish instructions to shareholders who wish to choose the Alternative Consideration instead of the Improved Cash Price.

Each shareholder of Caverion who has already accepted the Tender Offer or accepts the Tender Offer before the Supplement regarding the Improved Tender Offer is published will, after such Supplement is published, be deemed to have accepted the Tender Offer with the Improved Cash Price. Therefore, a shareholder of Caverion who has already tendered his/her Shares in the Tender Offer or tenders before such Supplement is made public, and who wishes to receive the Improved Cash Price, does not have to re-tender his/her Shares or take any other action as a result of the Improved Tender Offer before or after the publication of the Supplement regarding the Improved Tender Offer. All such shareholders will then receive the Improved Cash Price, if the Tender Offer will be completed.

Shareholders of Caverion who have already tendered their Shares in the Tender Offer, and who wish to choose the Alternative Consideration instead of the Improved Cash Price are given an opportunity to withdraw their previous acceptance and to submit the new acceptance form for the Alternative Consideration after the Supplement regarding the Improved Tender Offer is published. The target is to give shareholders an opportunity to withdraw their previous acceptance without additional fees, in case such withdrawal is made after the Supplement regarding the Improved Tender Offer is published.

Conditions to Completion of the Tender Offer

The completion of the Tender Offer is subject to the satisfaction or waiver by the Offeror of certain customary conditions on or prior to the Offeror's announcement of the final results of the Tender Offer including, among other things, that the Tender Offer has been validly accepted with respect to the Shares representing, together with any other Shares otherwise acquired by the Offeror prior to or during the Offer Period, more than 66 2/3 percent of the Shares and votes in the Company calculated in accordance with Chapter 18 Section 1 of the Finnish Limited Liability Companies Act (624/2006, as amended, the "Finnish Companies Act").

Financing

The Offeror has received equity commitments, as evidenced in equity commitment letters addressed to the Offeror, the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy has received debt commitments (as supplemented by supplemental deeds dated January 10, 2023 and January 20, 2023, respectively) and the Offeror has received debt commitments (and interim debt commitments) as evidenced in debt commitment letters addressed to the Offeror, in each case, to finance the Tender Offer at completion and compulsory redemption proceedings, if any.

In connection with the Improved Tender Offer the equity commitments given to the Offeror by Bain Capital Funds and the members of the Consortium to finance the Tender Offer have been amended with the consent of the Company to include also financing for the redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments by the Offeror when they fall due.

The Offeror's obligation to complete the Tender Offer is not conditional upon availability of financing. The debt financing has been committed on a customary European "*certain funds*" basis and thus its availability is subject to only limited conditions. The Offeror was incorporated for the purpose of implementing the Tender Offer. The completion of the Tender Offer or offering of Alternative Consideration Instruments as alternative consideration in the Improved Tender Offer is not in itself expected to have any significant effect on the business operations, profit and financial position of the Offeror.

Combination Agreement

The Combination Agreement (as amended with the Amendment Agreement) includes customary provisions whereby the Board of Directors retains the right to withdraw, modify, cancel or amend and take actions contradictory to its recommendation to shareholders to accept the Tender Offer in order to fulfil the board's fiduciary duties in case of a competing proposal, which the Board of Directors has determined in good faith to constitute a superior offer (including from financial and deliverability points of view to the Offeror's Tender Offer), provided that the Board of Directors has (i) complied with its obligations in the Combination Agreement (as amended with the Amendment Agreement) to not solicitate competing transactions, (ii) notified the Offeror of the Company's receipt of the competing offer or competing proposal, (iii) in good faith provided the Offeror with an opportunity to negotiate with the Board of Directors about matters arising from the competing offer or competing proposal, and (iv) given the Offeror at least eight (8) business days from the date of publishing the competing offer or from the date of the Offeror having been informed in writing of a serious competing proposal and its material terms to enhance its Tender Offer as contemplated by the Combination Agreement (as amended with the Amendment Agreement).

Background for the Statement

Pursuant to the Finnish Securities Markets Act and the Helsinki Takeover Code issued by the Finnish Securities Market Association (the "**Helsinki Takeover Code**"), the Board of Directors must issue a public statement regarding the Tender Offer and supplement it in case of a competing tender offer.

The statement must include a well-founded assessment of the Tender Offer from the perspective of Caverion and its shareholders as well as of the strategic plans presented by the Offeror in the Tender Offer Document and their likely effects on the operations of, and employment at, Caverion.

For the purposes of issuing this statement, the Offeror has submitted to the Board of Directors the Finnish language Tender Offer Document, which has been supplemented on January 13, 2023 and a draft of the Finnish language supplement in the form in which the Offeror has filed it with the Finnish Financial Supervisory Authority for approval on February 3, 2023 (the "**Draft Supplement**").

In preparing its statement, the Board of Directors has relied on information provided in the Tender Offer Document and the Draft Supplement by the Offeror and certain other information provided by the Offeror and has not independently verified this information. Accordingly, the Board of Directors' assessment of the consequences of the Tender Offer on Caverion's business and employees should be treated with caution.

Assessment Regarding Strategic Plans Presented by the Offeror and Their Likely Effects on the Operations of, and Employment at, Caverion

Information Given by the Offeror

The Board of Directors has assessed the Offeror's strategic plans based on the statements made in the Offeror's announcements regarding the Tender Offer published on November 3, 2022 and January 24, 2023 (**"Announcements**") and in the Tender Offer Document.

According to the statements provided in the Announcements, the Consortium is fully committed to supporting the long-term development of Caverion. Security Trading, Fennogens Investments and Corbis in turn as committed and active long-term core shareholders of Caverion are dedicated to developing and growing Caverion as a standalone company and to ensure its competitiveness in the long run. As provided by the Consortium, the Consortium recognizes that Caverion has been recently undertaking a major effort to enhance its operations and narrow the gap vis-à-vis some of its competitors in terms of operating macro and market conditions are estimated to make it more challenging to continue the repositioning. The Consortium believes that to lock-in the improvements to date and to ensure future development, a step change in Caverion will be best placed to accelerate and deliver on the strategic initiatives needed for sustainably improving its long-run performance. To this aim, the Consortium intends to invest significant time and capital resources to support Caverion's long-term development.

Under private ownership, Caverion is expected to pursue an ambitious investment program in organic initiatives as well as acquisitions of synergistic businesses and other consolidation opportunities, notwithstanding a period of heightened economic and geo-political uncertainty. The Consortium believes that Caverion, in a private setting, will more effectively manage all above mentioned initiatives as well as cur-rent market challenges, as its management can devote its full attention to the business without the constraints imposed by the quarterly earnings cycle and the public market.

The Consortium is well-positioned to support the transformation of Caverion due to Bain Capital's considerable experience in the industry, including as a former investor in Bravida, and distinctive approach to investments, working alongside management in the pursuit of long-term strategic goals. With Bain Capital, Caverion will have a reference shareholder that can combine a long-term perspective with industrial expertise, and that has a strong track record of successfully developing companies through a period of private ownership. Caverion long-term main shareholders' prominent participation in the Consortium will ensure continuity with Company's culture and history. Together, this unique group of investors, in good co-operation with Caverion's employees, will bring along to Caverion the appropriate long-term investment horizon, industrial expertise and financial resources.

The completion of the Tender Offer is not expected to have any immediate material effects on the operations, or the position of the management or employees, of Caverion. However, as is customary, the Offeror intends to change the composition of the Board of Directors of Caverion after the completion of the Tender Offer.

Board Assessment

The Board of Directors repeats its earlier assessment regarding the Offeror's strategic plans. The Board of Directors believes that the Consortium is well-positioned to support the transformation of Caverion thanks to Bain Capital's considerable experience in the industry and distinctive approach to investments, working alongside management in the pursuit of long-term strategic goals. The Board of Directors believes that the prominent participation of the Company's long-term main shareholders in the Consortium will also ensure continuity with the Company's culture and history. Consequently, the Board of Directors believes that together this unique group of investors is best equipped with relevant industrial expertise and adequate capital resources to support the transformation of the Company.

The Board of Directors considers that the information on the Offeror's strategic plans concerning Caverion included in the Announcements and the Tender Offer Document is of a general nature. However, based on the information presented to Caverion and the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors believes that the completion of the Tender Offer is not expected to have any immediate material effects on Caverion's operations or the position of the employees of Caverion.

On the date of this statement, the Board of Directors has not received from Caverion's employees any formal statements as to the effects of the Tender Offer to the employment at Caverion.

Assessment Regarding Financing Presented by the Offeror

Information Given by the Offeror on the Financing

The Board of Directors has assessed the Offeror's financing mainly on the basis of information presented in the Tender Offer Document, the Draft Supplement and the Announcements. Furthermore, the Company's legal adviser Castrén & Snellman Attorneys Ltd has reviewed the Offeror's principal financing documents.

Pursuant to the Tender Offer Document, the Draft Supplement and the Announcements the Offeror has received equity commitments, as evidenced in equity commitment letters addressed to the Offeror (including the amendments made on January 24, 2023 with the consent of the Company), the indirect parent of the Offeror, North Holdings 1 Oy has received debt commitments (as supplemented by supplemental deeds dated January 10, 2023 and January 20, 2023, respectively) and the Offeror has received debt commitments (and interim debt commitments) as evidenced in debt commitment letters addressed to the Offeror, in each case, to finance the Tender Offer at completion and compulsory redemption proceedings, if any.

The Offeror's obligation to complete the Tender Offer is not conditional upon availability of financing. The debt financing has been committed on a customary European "*certain funds*" basis and thus its availability is subject to only limited conditions. The completion of the Tender Offer or offering of Alternative Consideration Instruments as alternative consideration in the Improved Tender Offer is not in itself expected to have any significant effect on the business operations, profit and financial position of the Offeror.

The Offeror's Representations and Warranties in the Combination Agreement

In the Combination Agreement (as amended with the Amendment Agreement), the Offeror represents and warrants to Caverion that the Offeror has access to capital in a sufficient amount, as evidenced in, together, (i) the equity commitment letters and (ii) the debt commitment letters, in each case, delivered to the Company prior to the execution of the Combination Agreement (as amended with the Amendment Agreement), to finance (in part) the payment of the aggregate Offer Price for all of the Shares in connection with the Tender Offer and in connection with the subsequent compulsory redemption proceedings thereafter and (with respect to the equity commitment letters) the possible payment of the termination fee by the Offeror. The Offeror's obligation to complete the Tender Offer is not conditional upon availability of financing (assuming that all the conditions for the completion of the Tender Offer are otherwise satisfied (or waived by the Offeror)).

Board Assessment

Based on the information made available by the Offeror to the Company, the Board of Directors believes that the Offeror has secured necessary and adequate financing in sufficient amounts in the form of cash available under the equity and debt commitment letters in order to finance the Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration pursuant to the Tender Offer, the payment of the termination fee, if any, and compulsory redemption proceedings, if any, in accordance with the requirement set out in Chapter 11, Section 9 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act.

Assessment of the Tender Offer from the Perspective of Caverion and its Shareholders

When evaluating the Tender Offer, analysing alternative opportunities available to Caverion and concluding on its statement, the Board of Directors has considered several factors, including, but not limited to, Caverion's recent financial performance, current position and future prospects, the historical performance of the trading price of Caverion's share, and the conditions for the Offeror to complete the Tender Offer.

Following the receipt of non-binding indicative proposal from Crayfish on November 10, 2022, and after the announcement of a binding Competing Offer by Crayfish on January 10, 2023, the Board of Directors has carefully assessed and, in consultation with its advisors, carefully compared the Offer and the Competing Offer. In its assessment, in addition to the significantly increased Offer Price and other terms and conditions of the Tender Offer, the Board of Directors has taken into consideration factors such as deal certainty for the Company and its shareholders, anticipated timeline to closing, including the fact that the Offeror has received all necessary regulatory approvals, as well as potential disruptions caused by the transaction processes for the Company and its employees and other stakeholders. Based on analyses prepared by the Company's advisors, the completion of the Competing Offer would be subject to a more lengthy and complex merger clearance process, which would likely result in structural remedies being required as a condition to completion of the Competing Offer, and the anticipated timeline to closing would be significantly longer compared to the Tender Offer. In addition, the Board of Directors has considered that the lower condition for acceptance threshold of 66 2/3 percent in the Tender Offer also provides more deal certainty in comparison to the Competing Offer. The Board of Directors' assessment of continuing the business operations of Caverion as an independent company has been based on reasonable future-oriented estimates, which include various uncertainties, whereas the Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration and the premium included therein are not subject to any uncertainty other than the fulfilment of the conditions to completion of the Tender Offer. However, the Alternative Consideration includes to some extent more uncertainty than the Improved Cash Price, as the redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments will take place only after nine (9) months from their issue date, and consequently shareholders of Caverion are exposed to some risks in respect of the Offeror's ability to meet its payment obligations under the Alternative Consideration. The Supplement of the Tender Offer Document will include more detailed information of the Tender Offer and the Alternative Consideration, including the risks involved with choosing the Alternative Consideration. The Board notes, however, that Bain Capital Europe Fund VI, Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis (the "Investors") have given equity commitments to the Offeror to enable also the payment of the aggregate Improved Cash Price as well as redemption of the Alternative Consideration Instruments and payment of the Deferred Payment Rights by the Offeror. Pursuant to the terms of the equity commitment letters, the Offeror has undertaken not to apply the funding drawn down under the equity commitment letters for other purposes, such as the repayment of the Offeror's other financial indebtedness, and any bankruptcy or winding-up of the Offeror does not affect the Offeror's ability to draw down such commitments under the terms of the equity commitment letters.

The Board of Directors received an opinion, dated January 24, 2023, from Caverion's exclusive financial adviser, Bank of America Europe DAC, Stockholm branch ("**BofA Securities**"), to the effect that, as of the date of such opinion, each of the alternatives, the Improved Cash Price and the Alternative Consideration, to be paid to holders of Shares (other than Security Trading, Fennogens and Corbis and their respective affiliates) pursuant to the Improved Tender Offer, was fair, from a financial point of view, to such holders, which opinion was based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications on the review undertaken as more fully described in such opinion (the "**Opinion**"). The Opinion was provided for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors and does not constitute a recommendation as to whether any holders of Shares should tender such Shares in connection with the Improved Tender Offer, how any holders of Shares should act in connection with the Improved Tender Offer or any related matter. The complete Opinion is attached as an appendix to this statement.

The Board of Directors believes that the consideration offered by the Offeror to the shareholders is fair to the shareholders based on its assessment of the matters and factors, which the Board of Directors has concluded to be material in evaluating the Tender Offer. These matters and factors include, but are not limited to:

- the information and assumptions on the business operations and financial condition of Caverion as at the date of this statement and their expected future development, including an assessment of expected risks and opportunities related to the implementation and execution of Caverion's current strategy;
- the Offer Price and the premium being offered for the Shares;
- the historical trading price of Caverion's share;
- transaction certainty, and that the conditions of the Tender Offer are reasonable and customary;
- valuation multiples of Caverion's share compared to the industry multiples before the announcement of the Tender Offer;
- valuations and analysis made and commissioned by the Board of Directors as well as discussions with an external financial adviser;
- the ability to respond to possible third-party proposals if necessary to comply with the Board of Director's fiduciary duties;
- the Improved Tender Offer compared to the Competing Offer and the investigations, evaluations and negotiations conducted by the Company in relation to the Competing Offer; and
- the Opinion issued by BofA Securities.

In addition, the Board of Directors considers the Offer Price level, participation of Caverion's long-term main shareholders in the Consortium and the shareholder support for the Tender Offer in the form of irrevocable undertakings to positively affect the ability of the Offeror to gain control of more than 66 2/3 percent of the Shares and, thereby, help successfully complete the Tender Offer.

The Board of Directors has concluded that the relevant business prospects of Caverion would provide opportunities for Caverion to develop its business as an independent company for the benefit of Caverion and its shareholders. However, taking into consideration the risks and uncertainties associated with such standalone approach as well as the terms and conditions of the Tender Offer included in the Tender Offer Document and the Draft Supplement, the Board of Directors has concluded that the Tender

Offer is a favourable alternative for the shareholders, and with regard to the consideration offered and the likelihood of completion, better from a shareholder's perspective when compared to the Competing Offer.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors of Caverion

The Board of Directors has carefully assessed the Tender Offer and its terms and conditions based on the Tender Offer Document, the Draft Supplement, the Opinion and other available information.

Based on the foregoing, the Board of Directors considers that the Tender Offer and the amount of the Offer Price are, under the prevailing circumstances, fair to Caverion's shareholders.

Given the abovementioned viewpoints, the members of the Board of Directors that participated in the consideration and decision-making concerning the implications of the Tender Offer and this statement in Caverion unanimously recommend that the shareholders of Caverion accept the Tender Offer.

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Markus Ehrnrooth, who is closely associated with two of the parties of the Consortium, Fennogens and Corbis, has not participated in any assessment or review of the implications of the Tender Offer by the Board of Directors or in any decision-making concerning the recommendation of the Board of Directors or the Combination Agreement or the Amendment Agreement. Markus Ehrnrooth has not participated in and has refrained from the work of the Board of Directors in Caverion during the pendency of the discussions between the Consortium and Caverion as well as Crayfish and Caverion concerning the tender offers due to his material connections to and interests in the Offeror.

Certain Other Matters

The Board of Directors notes that the Tender Offer may, as is common in such processes, involve unforeseeable risks.

The Board of Directors notes that the shareholders of the Company should also take into account the lowered acceptance condition of above 66 2/3 percent as well as potential risks related to non-acceptance of the Tender Offer. Should the final result of the acceptance level of the Tender Offer be lower than 90 percent or if the acceptance condition of more than 66 2/3 percent of the Shares and votes is waived, there would be no redemption of the minority shareholders' Shares in the Company and that the Company would likely remain listed on Nasdaq Helsinki, but the completion of the Tender Offer would reduce the number of the Company's shareholders and the number of Shares, which would otherwise be traded on Nasdaq Helsinki. Depending on the number of Shares validly tendered in the Tender Offer, this could have an adverse effect on the liquidity and value of the Shares in the Company and make it more difficult to dispose of Shares in a timely manner or at a favorable price after the completion of the Tender Offer. The Offeror has not communicated any changes to its previously communicated plans with respect to the Company for the event the Tender Offer is completed with the acceptance level being above 66 2/3 percent but lower than 90 percent.

If the Tender Offer is completed in accordance with its terms, without waiving the minimum acceptance condition of more than 66 2/3 percent of the Shares and votes, the Offeror will hold two-thirds or more of the Shares and exercise two-thirds or more of the voting rights represented in General Meetings and thereby become a controlling shareholder that is able to significantly influence the Company's course of business, including, but not limited to, strategy, business plan and future M&A opportunities. As a result, the Company's abilities to operate as a fully independent listed company will be limited. The Offeror would pursuant to the Finnish Companies Act be able to make major decisions concerning Caverion independently and without cooperation with other shareholders. Pursuant to the Finnish Companies Act, a shareholder that holds more than two-thirds of the shares and voting rights carried by the shares in a company has sufficient voting rights to decide upon certain corporate transactions, including, but not limited to, a merger of the Company into another company, an amendment of the articles of association of the Company, changing the domicile of the Company and an issue of shares in the Company in deviation from the shareholders' pre-emptive subscription rights. The Offeror may in practice, depending on the number of Shares represented and votes cast at a General Meeting, have the same influence even if it would waive the 66 2/3 percent acceptance level condition and complete the Tender Offer at a lower acceptance level.

Pursuant to Chapter 18 of the Finnish Companies Act, a shareholder that holds more than 90 percent of all shares and votes in a company shall have the right to acquire and, subject to a demand by other shareholders, also be obligated to redeem the shares owned by the other shareholders. In such case, the Shares held by the Company's shareholders, who have not accepted the Tender Offer, may be redeemed through redemption proceedings under the Finnish Companies Act in accordance with the conditions set out therein.

Caverion has undertaken to comply with the Helsinki Takeover Code referred to in Chapter 11, Section 28 of the Finnish Securities Markets Act.

This statement of the Board of Directors does not constitute and should not be considered to be investment or tax advice, and the Board of Directors does not specifically evaluate herein the general price development of the Shares or the risks relating to the Shares or the Alternative Consideration in general. Shareholders must independently decide whether to accept the Tender Offer and whether to choose the Improved Cash Price or the Alternative Consideration, and they should take into account all the relevant information available to them, including information presented in the Tender Offer Document and this statement as well as any other factors affecting the value of the Shares and the ability of the Offeror to meet its obligations under the Alternative Consideration.

Caverion has appointed BofA Securities as its financial adviser and Castrén & Snellman Attorneys Ltd as its legal adviser in connection with the Tender Offer.

The Board of Directors

Appendix: Opinion

Distribution: Nasdaq Helsinki, key media, <u>www.caverion.com</u>

ABOUT CAVERION

Caverion is a public limited liability company incorporated under the laws of Finland with its shares listed on the official list of Nasdaq Helsinki. Caverion is a Northern & Central European-based expert for smart and sustainable built environments, enabling performance and people's well-being. Caverion offers expert guidance during the entire life cycle of buildings, infrastructure or industrial sites and processes: from design & build to projects, technical and industrial maintenance, facility management as well as advisory services. At the end of December 2022, there were almost 14,500 professionals serving customers at the service of Caverion Group in 10 countries.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

THIS STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE MAY NOT BE RELEASED OR OTHERWISE DISTRIBUTED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN OR INTO, AUSTRALIA, CANADA, HONG KONG, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA OR IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE TENDER OFFER WOULD BE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

THIS STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE IS NOT A TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR A SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT TO TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT AND AS SUCH DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR INVITATION TO MAKE A SALES OFFER. IN PARTICULAR, THIS STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN, AND IS NOT AN EXTENSION OF THE TENDER OFFER, IN, AUSTRALIA, CANADA, HONG KONG, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA. INVESTORS SHALL ACCEPT THE TENDER OFFER FOR THE SHARES ONLY ON THE BASIS OF THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT AND THE POSSIBLE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENTS TO THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT. OFFERS WILL NOT BE MADE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE EITHER AN OFFER OR PARTICIPATION THEREIN IS PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW OR WHERE ANY TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR REGISTRATION OR OTHER REQUIREMENTS WOULD APPLY IN ADDITION TO THOSE UNDERTAKEN IN FINLAND.

THE TENDER OFFER IS NOT BEING MADE DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW AND THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT, THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT AND RELATED ACCEPTANCE FORMS WILL NOT AND MAY NOT BE DISTRIBUTED, FORWARDED OR TRANSMITTED INTO OR FROM ANY JURISDICTION WHERE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS. IN PARTICULAR, THE TENDER OFFER IS NOT BEING MADE, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN OR INTO, OR BY USE OF THE POSTAL SERVICE OF, OR BY ANY MEANS OR INSTRUMENTALITY (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION, TELEX, TELEPHONE OR THE INTERNET) OF INTERSTATE OR FOREIGN COMMERCE OF, OR ANY FACILITIES OF A NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE OF, AUSTRALIA, CANADA, HONG KONG, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA. THE TENDER OFFER CANNOT BE ACCEPTED, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, BY ANY SUCH USE, MEANS OR INSTRUMENTALITY OR FROM WITHIN, AUSTRALIA, CANADA, HONG KONG, JAPAN, NEW ZEALAND OR SOUTH AFRICA AND ANY PURPORTED ACCEPTANCE OF THE TENDER OFFER RESULTING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM A VIOLATION OF THESE RESTRICTIONS WILL BE INVALID.

THIS STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE HAS BEEN PREPARED IN COMPLIANCE WITH FINNISH LAW, THE RULES OF NASDAQ HELSINKI LTD AND THE HELSINKI TAKEOVER CODE AND THE INFORMATION DISCLOSED MAY NOT BE THE SAME AS THAT WHICH WOULD HAVE BEEN DISCLOSED IF THIS STOCK EXCHANGE RELEASE HAD BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF JURISDICTIONS OUTSIDE OF FINLAND.

Information for shareholders of Caverion in the United States

Shareholders of Caverion in the United States are advised that the Shares are not listed on a U.S. securities exchange and that Caverion is not subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "**Exchange Act**"), and is not required to, and does not, file any reports with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "**SEC**") thereunder.

The Tender Offer is made for the issued and outstanding shares of Caverion, which is domiciled in Finland, and is subject to Finnish disclosure and procedural requirements. The Tender Offer is made in the United States pursuant to Section 14(e) and Regulation 14E under the Exchange Act, subject to the exemption provided under Rule 14d-1(c) under the Exchange Act for a Tier I tender offer (the "**Tier I Exemption**") and Rule 802 (the "**802 Exemption**") under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (the "**U.S. Securities Act**"), and otherwise in accordance with the disclosure and procedural requirements of Finnish law, including with respect to the Tender Offer timetable, settlement procedures, withdrawal, waiver of conditions and timing of payments, which are different from those of the United States. In particular, the financial information included in this stock exchange release has been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards in Finland, which may not be comparable to the financial statements or financial information of U.S. companies. The Tender Offer is made to Caverion's shareholders resident in the United States on the same terms and conditions as those made to all other shareholders of Caverion to whom an offer is made. Any informational documents, including this stock exchange release, are being disseminated to U.S. shareholders on a basis comparable to the method that such documents are provided to Caverion's other shareholders.

As permitted under the Tier I Exemption, the settlement of the Tender Offer is based on the applicable Finnish law provisions, which differ from the settlement procedures customary in the United States, particularly as regards to the time when payment of the consideration is rendered. The Tender Offer, which is subject to Finnish law, is being made to the U.S. shareholders in accordance with the applicable U.S. securities laws, and applicable exemptions thereunder, in particular the Tier I Exemption and the 802 Exemption. To the extent the Tender Offer is subject to U.S. securities laws, those laws only apply to U.S. shareholders and will not give rise to claims on the part of any other person. U.S. shareholders should consider that (whether paid initially in cash or upon redemption of any Alternative Consideration Instruments) the Offer Price for the Tender Offer is being paid in EUR and that no adjustment will be made based on any changes in the exchange rate.

To the extent permissible under applicable law or regulations, the Offeror and its affiliates or its brokers and its brokers' affiliates (acting as agents for the Offeror or its affiliates, as applicable) may from time to time after the date of this stock exchange release and during the pendency of the Tender Offer, and other than pursuant to the Tender Offer, directly or indirectly purchase or arrange to purchase Shares or any securities that are convertible into, exchangeable for or exercisable for Shares. These purchases may occur either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. To the extent information about such purchases or arrangements to purchase is made public in Finland, such information will be disclosed by means of a press release or other means reasonably calculated to inform U.S. shareholders of Caverion of such information. In addition, the financial advisers to the Offeror may also engage in ordinary course trading activities in securities of Caverion, which may include purchases or arrangements to purchase such securities. To the extent required in Finland, any information about such purchases will be made public in Finland in the manner required by Finnish law.

Neither the SEC nor any U.S. state securities commission has approved or disapproved the Tender Offer (including the offer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments), passed upon the merits or fairness of the Tender Offer (including the offer of the Alternative Consideration Instruments), or passed any comment upon the adequacy, accuracy or completeness of the disclosure in relation to the Tender Offer (including in relation to the Alternative Consideration Instruments). Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS HAVE NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION, AND THE ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATION INSTRUMENTS CONSTITUTE "RESTRICTED SECURITIES" PURSUANT TO THE SECURITIES ACT, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD WITH UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR, THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED IN REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT), EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL SECURITIES LAWS.

The receipt of cash pursuant to the Tender Offer by a U.S. shareholder may be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and under applicable U.S. state and local, as well as foreign and other, tax laws. Each holder of Shares is urged to consult its independent professional advisers immediately regarding the tax and other consequences of accepting the Tender Offer.

It may be difficult for Caverion's shareholders to enforce their rights and any claims they may have arising under the U.S. federal securities laws, since the Offeror and Caverion are located in a non-U.S. jurisdiction and some or all of their respective officers and directors may be residents of non-U.S. jurisdictions. Caverion shareholders may not be able to sue the Offeror or Caverion or their respective officers or directors in a non-U.S. court for violations of the U.S. federal securities laws. It may be difficult to compel the Offeror and Caverion and their respective affiliates to subject themselves to a U.S. court's judgment.

NEITHER THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE TENDER OFFER, PASSED ANY COMMENTS UPON THE MERITS OR FAIRNESS OF THE TENDER OFFER, PASSED ANY COMMENT UPON THE ADEQUACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT OR PASSED ANY COMMENT ON WHETHER THE CONTENT IN THE TENDER OFFER DOCUMENT OR THE SUPPLEMENT DOCUMENT IS CORRECT OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE IN THE UNITED STATES.

Disclaimer

BofA Securities, a subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation, is acting exclusively for Caverion and no one else in connection with the Tender Offer and the matters set out in this stock exchange release, and will not be responsible to anyone other than Caverion for providing the protections afforded to its clients or for providing advice in relation to the Tender Offer or any matter or arrangement referred to in this stock exchange release.

Investor and media enquiries:

Milena Hæggström, Head of Investor Relations and External Communications, Caverion Corporation, tel. +358 40 5581 328, milena.haeggstrom@caverion.com

Our life is shaped by the environments we build around us. By making built environments smart and sustainable, Caverion enables performance and people's well-being. Customers can trust our expert guidance during the entire life cycle of their buildings, infrastructure or industrial sites and processes: from design & build to projects, technical and industrial maintenance, facility management as well as advisory services. Our customers are supported by over 15,000 professionals in 10 countries in Northern and Central Europe. Our revenue in 2021 was approximately EUR 2.1 billion. Caverion's shares are listed on Nasdaq Helsinki.

Caverion - Building Performance

www.caverion.com @CaverionGroup

BofA SECURITIES

Bank of America Europe DAC - Stockholm Bankfilial Regeringsgatan 59, lift B 10th floor, Stockholm 111 56, Sweden T +46 (0)853522080 www.bofaml.com

24 January 2023

The Board of Directors Caverion Ovi Torpantie 2, 01650 Vantaa Finland

Members of the Board of Directors:

On 3 November 2022, Bain Capital Lux Holdco SARL (a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity and/or its affiliates), as well as Security Trading Oy ("Security Trading"), Fennogens Investment SA and Corbis SA (together with Security Trading, the "Family Investors") (together the "Consortium") announced a voluntary recommended public cash tender offer (the "Offer") for all of the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion Oyj ("Caverion") not held by Caverion or any of its subsidiaries (the "Caverion Shares" or, individually, a "Caverion Share") by way of a press release (the "Press Release"). Under the terms of the Offer, the shareholders of Caverion, other than Caverion or any of its subsidiaries, were offered a cash consideration of EUR 7.00 for each Caverion Share validly tendered in the Offer (the "Consideration").

We understand that the Consortium is proposing to announce an increase in the Consideration to a choice between: (i) EUR 8.00 in cash for each Caverion Share, payable at completion of the Revised Offer (as defined below); and (ii) EUR 8.50 in cash for each Caverion Share, payable 9 months after completion of the Revised Offer (the "Revised Consideration"; the Offer, as modified to reflect the Revised Consideration, the "Revised Offer"), which is expected to be announced by way of a press release on 24 January 2023 (the "New Press Release"). The terms and conditions of the Revised Offer and other aspects of the proposed transaction involving the Consortium and Caverion (together with the Revised Offer, the "Transaction") are more fully set forth in the Press Release, the New Press Release, the Combination Agreement and the Amendment and Addendum Agreement to the Combination Agreement (as defined below). We have been advised that the Family Investors are major shareholders of Caverion.

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to the holders of Caverion Shares (other than the Family Investors and their respective affiliates) of the Revised Consideration to be received by such holders in the Transaction.

In connection with this opinion, we have, among other things:

- a) reviewed certain publicly available business and financial information relating to Caverion;
- b) discussed the past and current business, operations, financial condition and prospects of Caverion with members of senior management of Caverion;

Registered with the Swedish Companies Registration Office (Bolagsverket) (Reg. No. 516406-1128).

Registered No. 229165. A wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation. A list of names and personal details of every director of the company is available for inspection to the public at the company's registered office for a nominal fee.

Authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland and subject to limited regulation by the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority (Finansinspektionen). Bank of America Europe DAC is registered in Ireland. Registered Office: Two Park Place, Hatch Street, Dublin 2, Ireland.

BANK OF AMERICA

The Board of Directors Caverion Oyj Page 2

- c) reviewed certain internal financial and operating information with respect to the business, operations and prospects of Caverion furnished to or discussed with us by the management of Caverion, including certain financial forecasts relating to Caverion prepared by the management of Caverion (the "Caverion Forecasts");
- d) reviewed the trading history for Caverion Shares and a comparison of that trading history with the trading histories of other companies we deemed relevant;
- e) compared certain financial and stock market information of Caverion with similar information of other companies we deemed relevant;
- f) compared certain financial terms of the Transaction to financial terms, to the extent publicly available, of other transactions we deemed relevant;
- g) reviewed the Press Release;
- h) reviewed the final execution version, dated 3 November 2022, of the combination agreement (the "Combination Agreement") and a draft, dated 23 January 2023, of the amendment and addendum agreement to the Combination Agreement (the "Addendum Agreement"); and
- i) performed such other analyses and studies and considered such other information and factors as we deemed appropriate.

In arriving at our opinion, we have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and completeness of the financial and other information and data publicly available or provided to or otherwise reviewed by or discussed with us and have relied upon the assurances of the management of Caverion that they are not aware of any facts or circumstances that would make such information or data inaccurate or misleading in any material respect. With respect to the Caverion Forecasts, we have been advised by Caverion, and have assumed, that they have been reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and good faith judgments of the management of Caverion as to the future financial performance of Caverion. We have not made or been provided with any independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of Caverion, nor have we made any physical inspection of the properties or assets of Caverion. We have not evaluated the solvency or fair value of Caverion under any laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or similar matters. We have assumed, at the direction of Caverion, that the Transaction will be completed in accordance with its terms, without waiver, modification or amendment of any material term, condition or agreement and that, in the course of obtaining the necessary governmental, regulatory and other approvals, consents, releases and waivers for the Transaction, no delay, limitation, restriction or condition, including any divestiture requirements or amendments or modifications, will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on Caverion or the contemplated benefits of the Transaction. We also have assumed, at the direction of Caverion, that the final executed Combination Agreement, the final Addendum Agreement and other aspects of the Transaction have not or will not, as applicable, differ in any material respect from the final execution version of the Combination Agreement and the draft Addendum Agreement reviewed by us.

We express no view or opinion as to any terms or other aspects of the Transaction (other than the Revised Consideration to the extent expressly specified herein), including, without limitation, the form or structure

The Board of Directors Caverion Oyj Page 3

of the Transaction. Our opinion is limited to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the Revised Consideration to be received by holders of Caverion Shares (other than the Family Investors and their respective affiliates) and no opinion or view is expressed with respect to any consideration received in connection with the Transaction by the holders of any class of securities, creditors or other constituencies of any party. In addition, no opinion or view is expressed with respect to the fairness (financial or otherwise) of the amount, nature or any other aspect of any compensation to any of the officers, directors or employees of any party to the Transaction, or class of such persons, relative to the Revised Consideration. Furthermore, no opinion or view is expressed as to the relative merits of the Transaction in comparison to other strategies or transactions that might be available to Caverion or in which Caverion might engage or as to the underlying business decision of Caverion to proceed with or effect the Transaction. In addition, we express no opinion or recommendation as to how any shareholder should act in connection with the Transaction or any related matter.

We have acted as financial advisor to the Board of Directors of Caverion in connection with the proposed Transaction and will receive a fee for our services, a portion of which is payable upon the rendering of this opinion and a significant portion of which is contingent upon closing of the Transaction. In addition, Caverion has agreed to reimburse our expenses and indemnify us against certain liabilities arising out of our engagement.

We and our affiliates comprise a full service securities firm and commercial bank engaged in securities, commodities and derivatives trading, foreign exchange and other brokerage activities, and principal investing as well as providing investment, corporate and private banking, asset and investment management, financing and financial advisory services and other commercial services and products to a wide range of companies, governments and individuals. In the ordinary course of our businesses, we and our affiliates may invest on a principal basis or on behalf of customers or manage funds that invest, make or hold long or short positions, finance positions or trade or otherwise effect transactions in equity, debt or other securities or financial instruments (including derivatives, bank loans or other obligations) of Caverion, members of the Consortium (respectively) and certain of their respective affiliates.

We and our affiliates in the past have provided, currently are providing, and in the future may provide, investment banking, commercial banking and other financial services to Caverion and have received or in the future may receive compensation for the rendering of these services.

In addition, we and our affiliates in the past have provided, currently are providing, and in the future may provide, investment banking, commercial banking and other financial services to members of the Consortium (respectively) and have received or in the future may receive compensation for the rendering of these services.

Further, we and our affiliates in the past have provided, currently are providing, and/or in the future may provide, investment banking, commercial banking and other financial services to Triton Partners Holdco Limited and have received or in the future may receive compensation for the rendering of these services.

It is understood that this letter is for the benefit and use of the Board of Directors of Caverion (in its capacity as such) in connection with and for purposes of its evaluation of the Transaction and is not rendered to or for the benefit of, and shall not confer rights or remedies upon, any person other than the Board of Directors of Caverion. This opinion may not be disclosed, referred to, or communicated (in



The Board of Directors Caverion Oyj Page 4

whole or in part) to any third party, nor shall any public reference to us be made, for any purpose whatsoever except with our prior written consent in each instance.

Our opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, monetary, market and other conditions and circumstances as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof. As you are aware, the credit, financial and stock markets have been experiencing unusual volatility and we express no opinion or view as to any potential effects of such volatility on Caverion or the Transaction. It should be understood that subsequent developments may affect this opinion, and we do not have any obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm this opinion. The issuance of this opinion was approved by our EMEA Fairness Opinion Review Committee.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, including the various assumptions and limitations set forth herein, we are of the opinion on the date hereof that the Revised Consideration to be received in the Transaction by holders of Caverion Shares (other than the Family Investors and their respective affiliates) is fair, from a financial point of view, to such holders.

Yours faithfully,

Bank of America Europe DAC, Stockholm Brand

BANK OF AMERICA EUROPE DAC, STOCKHOLM BRANCH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NORTH HOLDINGS 3 OY (UNAUDITED)

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3 c/o Roschier Attorneys Ltd Kasarminkatu 21 A 00130 Helsinki

NORTH HOLDINGS 3 OY

Financial statements

31.12.2022

Un-official translation

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3 c/o Roschier Attorneys Ltd Kasarminkatu 21 A 00130 Helsinki

CONTENTS

Financial statements for financial year 20.9.2022 - 31.12.2022

	page
Income statement	1
Balance sheet	2-3
Notes to the FS	4-5
List of documents	6
Signatures	7
Auditor's note	8

Financial statements has to be preserved 10 years after the financial period has expired, until 31. December 2032 (KPL 2:10.1 §).

Vouchers of the financial period has to be preserved at least 6 years from the end of the year during which the financial period has expired, until 31. December 2028 (KPL 2:10.2§).

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3 Page 1

Financial statement 31.12.2022

Income statement	20.9 31.12.2022
Other operating expenses	-17.530,81
OPERATING PROFIT (-LOSS)	-17.530,81
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES	-17.530,81
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR	-17.530,81

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3

Balance sheet	
ASSETS	31.12.2022
CURRENT ASSETS	
Debtors	
Short term debtors	
Receivables from associated companies	20.000,00
CURRENT ASSETS TOTAL	20.000,00
ASSETS TOTAL	20.000,00

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3	Page 3
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	31.12.2022
CAPITAL AND RESERVES	
Invested unrestricted equity fund Profit (loss) for the financial year CAPITAL AND RESERVE TOTAL	20.000,00 -17.530,81 2.469,19
LIABILITIES	
SHORT TERM LIABILITIES	
Trade creditors Other debtors Short term liabilities total	17.500,00 <u>30,81</u> 17.530,81
SHORT TERM LIABILITIES TOTAL	17.530,81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES TOTAL	20.000,00

Notes to financial statements 31.12.2022

Adopted accounting policies (PMA 1:1.5§)

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Finnish accounting Act and legislation based on act on small and micro entity accounts (PMA).

Events during the financial period

On 3 November 2022, the company entered into a combination agreement with Caverion Corporation pursuant to which, the company has made a voluntary public tender offer for all the issued and outstanding shares in Caverion Corporation that is recommended by the Board of Directors of Caverion Corporation. The company was incorporated on 20 September 2022 and has not conducted any other business activities. The company is indirectly wholly-owned by North Lux Topco SARL, which has been established as a holding company for the purpose of the tender offer. North Lux Topco SARL is currently wholly-owned by North (BC) Lux Holdco SARL, a vehicle owned and controlled by funds managed or advised by Bain Capital Private Equity (Europe), LLP, and/or its affiliates.

The company has been incorporated for the purposes of the tender offer and is dependent on its direct and indirect parent companies for financing. The company has received equity commitments from certain Bain Capital funds, Security Trading Oy, Fennogens Investments S.A. and Corbis S.A. in order to complete the tender offer

The offer period of the public tender offer started on 24 November 2022 and is expected to end on 28 February 2023. Upon completion of the tender offer, the company is expected to become the parent company of Caverion Corporation.

Events after the financial period

On 24 January 2023, the company and Caverion Corporation agreed on an amendment to the combination agreement signed on 3 November 2022. Pursuant to the amendment to the combination agreement, the company has, among other things, agreed to improve the consideration offered in the tender offer by giving the shareholders the possibility to choose either (i) a debt instrument entitling to a fixed cash payment of EUR 8.50 per share in nine months from the completion of the tender offer, or (ii) a cash consideration of EUR 8.00 per share payable immediately upon the completion of the tender offer.

The equity commitments received by the company have also been amended to cover the financing of the redemption of the debt instruments upon their maturity. In addition, National Westminster Bank plc and NatWest Markets N.V. and UBS Europe SE have agreed to arrange and provide (i) a EUR 325 million senior secured term loan facility and (ii) a EUR 150 million multicurrency senior secured revolving credit facility to the company in connection with the tender offer.

Notes of the parent company (PMA 3:8§)

Parent company: North (BC) Lux Holdco S.à.r.l., Luxemburg

North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3

Notes financial statements 31.12.2022

Personnel (PMA 3:11 §)

There was no employed personnel in the company during the financial year.

Shares

The company has 1000 shares. Each share entitles to one vote in the annual general meeting. All shares have a mutual right to dividend and the company reserves.

Changes in capital and reserves

	20.931.12.2022
Subscribed capital in the beginning of the financial year	0,00
New subscriptions	0,00
Subscribed capital in the end of the financial year	0,00
Tied equity capital	0,00
Unrestricted Equity Fund 20.9.2022	0,00
Investment to unrestricted equity fund	20.000,00
Unrestricted Equity Fund 31.12.2022	20.000,00
Edellisten tilikausien voitto/tappio tilikauden alussa	0,00
Edellisten tilikausien oikaisu * Edellisten tilikausien voitto/tappio tilikauden lopussa	0,00
	0,00
Profit (Loss) for the financial year	-17.530,81
Unrestricted equity capital total	2.469,19
Capital and reserves total	2.469,19
Distributable unrestricted equity capital 31.12.2022	2.469,19

The Board's proposition for measures regarding the company's profit: Company's Board of Directors proposes that no dividend will be distributed and the loss for the financial year will be transferred into equity to the retained earning's account. North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3

Financial statements separate combined Financial statements speciafications separate combined General ledgers electronically preserved

Voucher types and archiving

Bank statements Journals

Journal type Journal type 350 electronic form 2 electronic form

Signatures of the 31.12.2022 financial statements

Helsinki ___.__.2023

Ivano Sessa Chair of the Board of Directors

Nicholas Bendt Member of the Board of Directors

Klaus Cawén Member of the Board of Directors

Halvor Horten Member of the Board of Directors

Alexandre Labignette Member of the Board of Directors North Holdings 3 Oy Business ID 3313575-3

Auditor's note

Auditor's report has been issued today.

Helsinki __.__.2023

Ernst & Young Oy Authorised Public Accountants

Antti Suominen APA